Public Document Pack

AGENDA FOR U£

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE COUNGIL
Contact: Michael Cunliffe

Direct Line: 0161 253 5399

E-mail: m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk

Website: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Planning Control Committee

Councillors : G McGill (Chair), C Boles, N Boroda,
J Harris, M Hayes, J Lancaster, J Mason, D Quinn,
C Tegolo, K Thomas and D Vernon

Dear Member/Colleague

Planning Control Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control Committee
which will be held as follows:-

Date: Tuesday, 22 February 2022

Place: Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require

o briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the
Facilities: appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the related
report should be contacted.

Notes: Live streamed meeting
https://councilstream.com/burycouncil




AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider
whether they have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if

so, to formally declare that interest.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 25TH JANUARY 2022 (Pages
3-4)

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday the 25th January 2022 are attached.
PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages5 - 84)

Reports attached.

DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 85 - 98)

A report from the Head of Development Management on all delegated planning
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee is attached.

PLANNING APPEALS (Pages 99 - 106)

A report from the Head of Development Management on all Planning appeal
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee is attached.

URGENT BUSINESS

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair agrees may
be considered as a matter of urgency.



Agenda Item 3

Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting: 25 January 2022
Present: Councillor G McGill (in the Chair)
Councillors C Boles, N Boroda, J Harris, M Hayes,
J Lancaster, D Quinn, C Tegolo and D Vernon
Also in
attendance: Councillor S Wright
Public Attendance: 9 members of the public were present at the meeting.

Apologies for Absence: Councillors J Mason and K Thomas

PCCA1

PCC.2

PCC.3

PCC.4

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors: J Masonand K
Thomas.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH DECEMBER 2021
Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 14t December 2021 be approved as
a correct record and signed by the Chair.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted in relation to
applications for planning permission.

There was supplementary information to add in respect of application numbers
67431 and 67789.

The Committee heard representations from applicants, objectors and a ward
Councillor in respect of applications submitted. This was limited to three minutes
for the speaker.

Delegated decisions:

1.  That the Committee Be Minded to Approve the following application in
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the
report and any supplementary information submitted, subject to the
conditions included: -

Land off Poppythorn Lane, Prestwich

Residential development comprising 6 no. single storey apartments and 12 no.
duplex apartments in part-two and three storey linked buildings with landscaped

Pagel3



Planning ControlCommittee, 25 January 2022

PCC.5

PCC.6

PCC.7

PCC.8

grounds, car parking and a new access road from Poppythorn Lane serving the
development

2. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the
report and any supplementary information submitted and subject to the
conditions included: -

275 Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8QP

Change of use of ground floor from retail (Class E) to public house (Sui Generis)

with replacement of existing glazed frontage and new entrance/ramped access

DELEGATED DECISIONS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all

recent planning application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers

since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee.

Delegated decision:

That the report and appendices be noted.

PLANNING APPEALS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all

recent Planning Appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control

Committee.

Delegated decision:

That the report and appendices be noted.

PLANNING ENFORCEMENT

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing

statistical information on enforcement activity between the 15t October2021 to the

30t December 2021.

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

URGENT BUSINESS

No urgent business was reported.

COUNCILLOR G MCGILL

Chair

(Note: The meeting started at 7.05pm and ended at 7.53pm)

Pdye 4



Agenda Item 4

Title Planning Applications

To: Planning Control Committee
On: 22 February 2022
By: Development Manager

Status: For Publication

Executive Summary

The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved.

My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports.

This report has the following implications

Township Forum/ Ward: Identified in each case.
Policy: |dentified in each case.
Resources: Not generally applicable.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for:

The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;

The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it;

The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could include
a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and
all material planning considerations, | have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based

Page 5



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council
under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions.

Development Manager

Background Documents

The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith.
Certificates relating to the ownership.

Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties.
Responses from Consultees.

o~

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE.

Page 6



01

Township Forum - Ward: Bury East - Redvales App No. 66745
Location: Buckley Wells Locomotive Depot, Baron Street, Bury, BL9 0TY
Proposal: Development of the ELR's historic locomotive and carriage works site

including repair and restoration of the 1857 locomotive work building, the
construction of new locomotive running shed, incorporation of associated
new workshops and training facilities and construction of a standalone
carriage shed.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Y
Visit:

02 Township Forum - Ward: Bury East - Redvales App No. 66746
Location: Buckley Wells Locomotive Depot, Baron Street, Bury, BL9 0TY
Proposal: Listed Building Consent for the development of the ELR's historic

locomotive and carriage works site including repair and restoration of the
1857 locomotive work building, the construction of new locomotive running
shed, incorporation of associated new workshops and training facilities
and construction of a standalone carriage shed.
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Y
Visit:

03 Township Forum - Ward: Bury East - Moorside App No. 67867
Location: 206 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 6LL
Proposal: Change of use to 8-bedroom HMO (Sui Generis) and formation of front

and rear lightwells
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site N
Visit:
04 Township Forum - Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - App No. 67876
Ramsbottom
Location: 62 Bridge Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9AG
Proposal: Installation of refrigeration plant with pitched slate roof covering at rear
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Y
Visit:

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Bury East - Redvales ltem 01

Applicant: East Lancashire Light Railway Co. Ltd
Location: Buckley Wells Locomotive Depot, Baron Street, Bury, BL9 0TY

Proposal: Development of the ELR's historic locomotive and carriage works site including repair
and restoration of the 1857 locomotive work building, the construction of new
locomotive running shed, incorporation of associated new workshops and training
facilities and construction of a standalone carriage shed.

Application Ref: 66745/Full Target Date: 21/06/2021
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

The Development Manager has recommended a site visit prior to the Planning
Control Committee meeting.

Description
The application relates to Buckley Wells which is the location and facility of the locomotive
and carriage works and rail depot for the East Lancashire Railway (ELR).

The site is located on Baron Street which is formed off Manchester Old Road. The eastern
part of Baron Street is adopted and comprises residential properties on either side of the
street. There is an apartment block located next to the site where Baron Street then
becomes a part tarmac part cobbled unadopted road, classified as a By-Way Open to All
Traffic. At this point the main entrance to the site is formed. Baron Street then continues
westwards and leads to 3 separate schools (St Gabriel's, Bury Girls and Boys Grammar
School).

The overall Buckley Wells site area is 9.1ha. The site is split into two parts.

The main operational part of the site is 5.5ha and is immediately to the south of Baron
Street and comprises a Grade |l Listed locomotive works/carriage shed building, an
extensive network of railway sidings, storage containers, open air storage for a wide range
of railway infrastructure and engineering components and parking areas.

The southern part of the site has a narrow elongated triangular form, with Baron Street
forming the northern boundary, the eastern boundary is defined by the Metrolink line which
is screened from the site by dense planting and to the west is a steep embankment. It is
within a Wildlife Corridor and partly within a River Valley.

This part of the site is the subject of this planning application.

The other area of the Buckley Wells site is located opposite, to the north of Baron Street
which is additional operational land comprises a 'modern' carriage shed building constructed
in the 1980's and further railway sidings. To the west is an area of un-used land set at a
lower level to the main site which is overgrown with self-seeded vegetation.

Background to the application

The ELR plays a key role as a visitor and heritage attraction in the north west and has its
main workshop facilities located at the Buckley Wells site where the locomotives, carriages
and wagons are housed and where the essential locomotive and carriage operations,
maintenance and restoration facilities necessary to operate the successful heritage railway
are carried out.

In recent years the ELR Company has been pursuing a scheme of works to help improve

visitor experience and Buckley Wells, and as the centre for the railway operations, Buckley

Wells is the critical and indispensable base for the storage and maintenance of historic
Page 9



locomotives and carriages such as the Flying Scotsman.

The works are currently carried out in two buildings -

e A Grade Il Listed carriage shed building dating from 1857 which is located immediately
to the south of Baron Street. This houses the engineering facilities for the maintenance
and restoration of historic locomotives and facilities for both long term restoration
projects and operational locomotives in daily use. This building is deteriorating badly
and in need of significant investment to secure its longevity not only as a valuable
heritage asset but as vital facility for ELR and the site.

e A more modern carriage shed to the north of Baron Street which provides limited
facilities for restoration works and storage.

Not only is there a need to carry out essential works to the Listed Building but there is also a
need to provide additional purpose built provision for the fleet of locomotives and carriages
so they can be maintained to the highest possible standards expected of such an
established and high quality attraction and to secure the functions and capabilities to serve
the ELR.

There is also an aspiration to expand the important and essential training facilities within the
site to attract and train up future generations of volunteer engineers necessary and crucial
to maintain and successfully operate the heritage railway for years to come.

In essence, development works are essential to facilitate the managed growth of the ELR
on a long term and sustainable basis as a premier visitor and heritage attraction.

The proposal

The are 5 key elements to the redevelopment of the Buckley Wells site -

1. A comprehensive programme of restoration and repair to the Grade Il Listed historic
Buckley Wells carriage shed building. It will continue to be used for the restoration of
locomotives/general railway engineering operations including workshops and stores.

An extension of 626 sgm to provide new offices would be located at the north end of the
building to support training, skills and various operations associated with the overall site.

2. An extension to the LB carriage shed to provide a new locomotive running shed and
maintenance workshop which would be located on the western side of the building and
on the footprint of a former original Buckley Wells engine shed (demolished in the
1970's). This new build would have a portal frame structure with steel clad elevations
which would also accommodate classroom/workshop areas, stores, and other ancillary
facilities.

3. The erection of a new carriage shed which would house, restore and repair the ELR's
fleet of historic railway coaches. This would be located on an area of sidings to he
south of the Listed Building, approx 90m away. The building would be vital to the storing
of the machines and engines and for the protection from the elements and vandalism,
particularly as their maintenance can take an extensive period of time. The building
would be formed by a base of red engineering brick with steel clad elevations
interspersed with a row of symmetrically aligned window openings. Solar panels would
be located on the roof. A new internal access road would be formed to this building.

4. Within the site some tracks would be re-laid to facilitate rail access to the new buildings.

5. ltis also proposed to rationalise the external part of the site to provide for the expanded
operational capacity of the site and would include new areas of hardstanding,
designated parking areas for staff and volunteers and external storage facilities in the
eastern part of the site.

The scheme is proposed as a phased development comprising 3 components -

Phase 1 - Lifting and relaying rail track to establish facilitate and new track layout and

rationalise the areas for storage around the site. The site would also be cleared for the

construction works for the new build.

Phase 2 - Construction of the new build carriage shed and vehicular access route to the

building.

Phase 3 - Works to restore the Listed carriage shed and construction of the proposed
Page 10



running shed.

Relevant Planning History

47480 - Workshop extension to carriage and wagon shed - Approve with Conditions
28/02/2007

49349 - Carrying out of an engineered fill operation prior to accommodating new rail track
infrastructure without the restriction within condition 10 of planning permission ref. 48268
that would limit the hours during which the importation of materials to carry out the operation
can take place. - Approve with Conditions 19/03/2008

49958 - Erection of 2.4 metre high paladin security fencing from the Metrolink boundary
along the length of the bury grammar schools playing fields access road boundary, and
returning along baron street to the east Lancashire railway level crossing (retrospective) -
Approve 19/09/2008

53647 - Renewal of planning permission 49349 to carry out engineering fill operation prior to
accommodating new rail track infrastructure - Approve with Conditions 20/04/2011

Publicity

Letters sent to 122 properties on 30/3/21.
Site notice posted 15/4/21

Press advert 1/4/21

No representations made by the public have been received.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations

Traffic Section - No objection. Conditions to be recommended in the Supplementary
Planning Agenda.

Borough Engineer - Drainage Section - No response received

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objection subject to condition
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - No objection

Environmental Health - Commercial Section - No response received

Public Rights of Way Officer - No objection

Waste Management - No response received

United Utilities (Water and waste) - Recommend a condition for a detailed water drainage
scheme.

Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) - No objection in principle

TfGM Metrolink - Require a legal agreement regarding the use of Metrolink land
Rossendale Borough Council - Objection received - see report below for a summary and
response

The Coal Authority - No objection

Planning & Building Regs consultation Fire Protection Dept Bury Fire Station (Part B)
- Advisory note to applicant

Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objection subject to conditions and informatives

Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
EC1/2 Land Suitable for Business (B1)
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design
EN2/3 Listed Buildings

EN6/4 Wildlife Links and Corridors

EN7 Pollution Control

EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution

OL5/2 Development in River Valleys
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
HT3/4 Schemes to Assist Metrolink

HT4 New Development

HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict
RT4/6 East Lancashire Railway

Page 11



SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury
Area Bridge Road/Buckley Wells
BY2

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Policies and Principles
Opportunity Site

The majority of the site is allocated as an Opportunity Site in the Bury Unitary Development
Plan suitable for proposals for the further development and enhancement of facilities
associated with the East Lancashire Railway (RT4/6/5) or for Business (B1) and Office use
(EC1/2/8).

UDP Policy RT4/6 relates to the East Lancashire Railway and states that Council will
encourage and support proposals for the further development and enhancement of facilities
associated with the East Lancashire Railway. In accordance with this policy, a number of
sites are allocated for railway-related development, including the application site at Buckley
Wells under allocation RT4/6/5. The proposal is consistent with Policy RT4/6 and the specific
allocation under RT4/6/5.

The Opportunity Site allocation also identifies the site as being suitable for Business (B1)
and Office Use under UDP Policy EC1/2 and, specifically, under proposal EC1/2/8.
However, this opportunity reflected the site's proximity to a proposed new Park and Ride
Metrolink station at Buckley Wells (Highways and Transportation Proposal HT3/4/1) which
was considered to offer a unique opportunity to integrate a suitable employment use and a
major new public transport facility. However, the proposal for a Park and Ride Metrolink stop
is no longer active

Policy RT4/6/5 stresses the importance that further development of the railway is facilitated
to maximise the number of visitors to both the railway and wider Irwell Valley, and positively
encourages development aimed at safeguarding, improving or developing this important
resource and associated proposals.

The ELR is a key visitor and heritage attraction, and the site carries out essential
maintenance and operational related works necessary for the successful delivery of its
facility and services. The proposed development would contribute and improve on the
essential facilities to manage the expansion and enhancement programme which would
secure and facilitate the ELR as a major visitor and heritage attraction for the long term
future.

As such the proposals in principle are consistent with the currently adopted UDP policies on
Recreation and tourism.

River Valley

Part of the application site falls within an area that is designated as River Valley. UDP Policy
OL5/2 relates to development in River Valleys and states that within the River Valleys, new
buildings or the change of use of existing buildings or the

change of use of land will not be permitted. The only exceptions considered acceptable will

Page 12



be those where the development would not lead to the division of the open parts of the

valleys into sections and it falls within the terms below:

e where the area is designated as Green Belt the established Green Belt policies will
apply; or

e where the area does not form part of the Green Belt, at least one of the following
circumstances is met:

e that the development represents limited infilling to an established valley settlement or
industrial area;

e that it is an extension to, or renewal of an existing industry, where the economic and
employment factors are of overriding importance;

e that the development is required in association with an outdoor recreation or appropriate
tourist facility;

e that the development is limited and will form part of, and be essential to, the
maintenance of the provision and improvement of public services and utilities;

e any other development that would be appropriate in a Green Belt.

As the land is not designated as Green Belt, it is necessary for the proposal to meet at least
one of the exceptions set out in Policy OL5/2 above.

The proposals for the new locomotive running shed and the store compound would extend
into the River Valley area. In this respect, the proposed development would be contained
within the existing boundary of the Buckley Wells site on already developed land, and
therefore encroach no further into the River Valley than currently exists and therefore would
not lead to the division of open parts of the valley into sections. In addition, the proposal
would involve an extension to an existing industry, where the economic and employment
factors are of overriding importance as well as the development being required in
association with an outdoor recreation or appropriate tourist facility.

Consequently, the proposal is considered not to conflict with UDP Policy OL5/2.

Heritage considerations
The existing carriage shed at Buckley Wells is a Grade Il Listed Building.

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 Section 66(1) of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 require decision makers to have special
regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any feature of
architectural or historic interest it possesses. The decision maker must also give
considerable importance and weight to the desirability of preserving the setting of the listed
building.

Under UDP Policy EN2/3, the Council will actively safeguard the character and setting of
Listed Buildings by not permitting works, alterations or changes of use which would have a
detrimental effect on their historical or architectural character and features. Proposals for
demolition will be opposed and will only be considered where it is demonstrated conclusively
that the building(s) cannot be retained. Consideration of any potential impact on the Listed
Building should be given to ensure that there is no conflict with UDP Policy EN2/3.

In terms of the NPPF, under para 194, local planning authorities should require an applicant
to describe the significance of any heritage assets affected, including any contribution made
by their setting. The level of detail should be proportionate to the assets' importance and no
more than is sufficient to understand the potential impact of the proposal on their
significance.

195. Local planning authorities should identify and assess the particular significance of any
heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including by development affecting the
setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the available evidence and any necessary
expertise. They should take this into account when considering the impact of a proposal on a
heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict between the heritage asset's conservation
and any aspect of the proposal.

197. In determining applications, local planning authorities should take account of:
Page 13



a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and putting
them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable
communities including their economic vitality; and

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and
distinctiveness.

199. When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the
more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether
any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its
significance.

200. Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its
alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should require clear and
convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of:

a) grade Il listed buildings, or grade Il registered parks or gardens, should be exceptional;
b) assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments, protected wreck sites,
registered battlefields, grade | and II* listed buildings, grade | and II* registered parks and
gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly exceptional.

201. Where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to (or total loss of
significance of) a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities should refuse
consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or total loss is necessary to
achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or all of the following
apply:

a) the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and

b) no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through
appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and

c) conservation by grant-funding or some form of not for profit, charitable or public ownership
is demonstrably not possible; and d) the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of
bringing the site back into use.

202. Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public
benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.

The NPPF at Annex 2 describes setting as:

Setting of a heritage asset: The surroundings in which a heritage asset is experienced. Its
extent is not fixed and may change as the asset and its surroundings evolve. Elements of a
setting may make a positive or negative contribution to the significance of an asset, may
affect the ability to appreciate that significance or may be neutral;

and

Significance (for heritage policy): The value of a heritage asset to this and future generations
because of its heritage interest. The interest may be archaeological, architectural, artistic or
historic. Significance derives not only from a heritage asset's physical presence, but also
from its setting. For World Heritage Sites, the cultural value described within each site's
Statement of Outstanding Universal Value forms part of its significance.

An appropriate Heritage assessment has been submitted with the application in
consideration of the above heritage paras of the NPPF.

Works to the Listed Building

The proposal comprises of the extension of the existing 1857 building on its west elevation
which would replace the previous extension built in 1875 and demolished in the 1970s.
This would comprise of a two bay 4 road running shed. A steel portal construction it would
have a red brick plinth and steel cladding system. The roof would be hipped with a

Page 14



ventilation louvre along its length with solar panels and a translucent rooflight.

In design terms the proposed extension draws inspiration from the original extension in
terms of its size and scale with an acknowledgement to the architectural style of the original
extension with its 2 bay construction and ventilation louvre. In terms of height the proposal
would not dominate the existing shed and would not create unacceptable massing. Overall,
the proposed extension does not attempt to be a pastiche of the original shed and as such it
does not challenge the architectural aesthetic of the listed building or confuse its legibility as
an historic building of merit and interest.

The proposed extensions to the 1862 offices at the north elevation of the shed also draws
inspiration from the existing structure by virtue of its materials and height. This element,
although part of the listing entry does not possess any special interest. The proposed office
extension would provide much needed welfare, office and training facilities.

works/repairs - to fabric subject to LBC the

A comprehensive structural and condition report with a schedule of repair/restoration has
been submitted as part of the listed building consent application. Careful consideration will
be given to the amount, scale and scope and level of intervention of the required
repairs/restoration. As a rule, repairs will be kept to the required minimum in order to
preserve the significance of the building and this will be balanced against the need to
preserve the fabric of the building with regard to air and water tightness and structural
integrity.

The repairs and restoration are acceptable and comprise of external roof repairs, window
repairs, external brick repairs and internal roof timber repairs.

Setting

The proposed stand-alone carriage restoration workshop, carriage/diner and catering
accommodation shed would be sited to the south west of the 1857 shed and would be within
its setting. Its design philosophy is the same as that in approach to the design of the 1857
shed extension. It would be a portal frame 2 bay construction with brick plinth and a steel
cladding system, ventilation louvre, solar panels. Its height at approximately 16 metres
would be approximately 4 metres higher than the highest part of the original 1857 shed.
This would have an impact on its setting.

The setting of a listed building are the surroundings in which a heritage asset is experienced.
Its extent is not fixed and may change as the asset and its surroundings evolve. Elements of
a setting may make a positive or negative contribution to the significance of an asset and
may affect the ability to appreciate that significance or may be neutral.

It is important to note that setting is not a land use or a heritage value. Development within
or change to a setting can impact on the significance of the listed building. Buckley Wells is
an industrial site by its nature, its setting has changed over its lifetime with the addition and
removal of extensions to the original shed as well as addition and removal of permanent and
semi-permanent outbuildings. The site currently has a number of cabins and carriages
used as office space and for welfare and other ad hoc storage facilities within the site and
adjacent to the east elevation of the shed which have a negative impact on the setting of the
listed building. It is understood that proposals would allow these elements to be removed.
This would have a positive impact on its setting.

Heritage Balance and Conclusion -

Paragraph 201 of the NPPF states that where proposals amount to substantial harm to or
total loss of significance to a heritage asset the application should be refused. It is not
considered the proposals amount to this level of harm. The proposed extension to the shed
and office will not require any significant loss of historic fabric of the shed or alter its use or
adapt it in any way that would cause loss of significance as an architecturally important
railway building or the continuing use of the site as a railway depot. The proposed
extension would replace one that previously existed historically and as such together with
the office extension would represent a new addition to the building.  This would represent
less than substantial harm within the terms of paragraph 202 of the NPPF. As such

Page 15



paragraph 202 of the NPPF requires that where a development proposal will lead to less
than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its
optimum viable use.

It is considered the proposed extensions would bring considerable public benefits in
protecting the long term viable use of the shed and site as heritage railway and which would
also be compatible with its conservation. It would facilitate the expansion of the heritage
railway in a viable and compatible way and using green energy securing its future as well as
bringing economic and educational benefits. As such the proposed extensions would
outweigh, by virtue of their public benefits, the less than substantial harm identified and
therefore would comply with paragraph 202 of the NPPF.

The proposed stand-alone carriage restoration workshop, carriage/diner and catering
accommodation shed would be sited to the south west of the 1857 listed shed and would be
within its setting. The size and proximity of the proposed building together with associated
works comprising of additional hardstanding and track layout would have an impact on the
setting of the listed 1857 shed. The question is whether or not the proposal would alter the
setting in such a way as to cause harm to the significance of the listed shed.

The site is an evolved and evolving industrial site. As a working railway depot, it is viewed
in close by and wider distances within its industrial site context. The proposed stand-alone
carriage shed would not alter this fact. However, the way in which the listed shed is
experienced would be altered by the proximity of the proposal but given the context of the
site this alteration would not lead to substantial harm to or total loss of significance with
regard to paragraph 201 of the NPPF. Therefore, the proposed stand-alone carriage shed
would represent less than substantial harm to the significance of the listed shed. This harm
would be outweighed by the considerable public benefits brought by the scheme as already
identified above.

The proposal would therefore preserve the identified special historic and architectural
significance of the grade Il listed Buckley Wells locomotive and carriage shed and its setting.
The proposed restoration works and extension to the Listed Building would ensure the
longevity of the building and preserve the building and its use for years to come. It is
therefore considered the proposed development would be acceptable in principle and
comply with the principles of the NPPF and policy EN2/3.

The works which involve the Listed building and impact on the setting on the Listed Building
are assessed more fully in the parallel application ref 67864 which is the associated Listed
Building Consent application.

Conditions should be imposed on both the planning and associated LBC applications for the
formal assessment of condition and method of repair, scope and intervention to be submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority before the commencement of
works for repair or restoration.

It is recommended that a condition is also imposed for the submission of details of the
external finishes for the proposed extension and stand-alone carriage building to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority before any development
commences.

Layout and siting

Site constraints including the configuration of the track layout, form and shape of the overall
site, accesses to the site and the position of the Listed Building have informed the
development proposals.

Proposed new carriage shed - By its very nature, a purpose built carriage restoration
workshop needs to be large and elongated in form to not only enable the necessary works,
restorations, maintenance and repairs to take place but a facility to also accommodate the

Page 16




historic carriages which are currently stored outside and are vulnerable to inclement weather
and vandalism attacks. Facilitating their safe and secure storage would also double the
life-span of the carriages to 10 years.

Given the site constraints and necessary requirements, it is therefore proposed to site the
carriage shed in the southern part of the site which is the only area capable of
accommodating the 6065 sgm building and one which would also relate well in terms of
legibility and connections to the Listed Building and wider site.

To access the building, it is proposed to lay a new internal vehicular route from the car park
which would run along the eastern boundary of the site. This would not interfere with other
built development on site and also avoid the existing rail tracks. There would also be an area
to the west of the building which would be capable of providing a servicing and car park for
deliveries, staff and visitors without impacting on the wider site.

Internally, the building would provide areas for the storage of the carriages, separate to
those being maintained and repaired. The main staff facilities would also be located within
the building together with the catering block for the food preparations for the Red Rose
Pullman Diner which is a popular tourist attraction.

It is therefore considered the siting and layout of the proposed carriage shed could be
accommodated in this part of the site without affecting the operations of the Buckley Wells
site or adversely impacting on the River Valley.

Existing Listed Building - Proposed administration and training block - The main site
administrative office space, staff/volunteer mess and welfare facilities, and meeting rooms
are currently provided by the two temporary buildings located on the east side of the Listed
Building. These temporary buildings are unsightly, inadequate for the current and future level
of activity planned for the site and are becoming in an increasingly dilapidated condition.

The proposal is to replace and expand these facilities by adapting and extending the
brick-built office block that sits on the Baron Street end of the Listed Building.

It is proposed to demolish the small courtyard and toilet outhouse that sits on the north east
corner of the Listed Building and to construct an extension to the office block in the space
left by the demolition. The ground floor of the extension would provide a reception area that
would act as the main control point for managing access into the Running Shed/Heavy
Maintenance Workshop, and into the site overall. The first floor of the extension would
contribute to providing the meeting room/training room facilities.

The west side of the LB would also be extended. The ground floor of the proposed extension
would provide the space for the welfare facilities and the first floor would provide a large
mess room serving the entire building complex.

Facilitating this accommodation within the footprint and confines of the Listed Building would
not only provide much needed and upgraded facilities but would locate the functions within
one area to streamline and rationalise the operations of the ELR.

Proposed new Running Shed - The purpose of the proposed Running Shed would be to
significantly ease the pressure on the Listed Building which has reached its maximum
capacity and which negatively impacts on working conditions and also limits the number of
locomotives that can be worked on at one time. Such intensification of the use of the
building is also putting a physical strain on its historic fabric. Providing a new building would
relieve the pressure on the LB, enable a more spacious and efficient working environment to
be achieved and facilitate the equipment and machinery necessary to delivery the ELR
operations.

Ideally, the two builds need to be physically connected and site constraints including the
alignment of the rail tracks within the site and position of the existing access from Baron

Page 17



Street have been determining factors to where and how the building would be positioned.

It is therefore proposed to position the new build on the western elevation of the Listed
Building which previously accommodated an engine shed which was demolished in the
1970's and therefore an ideal position for a new build. This would allow connectivity to the
LB by an existing door opening on the west elevation with an additional connection directly
from the heavy workshop to facilitate the necessary operations which are carried out
internally. The Running Shed would provide a heavy maintenance shop for the major
locomotive restoration. The building would also provide accommodation for important
support facilities - workshops, stores and a dedicated training workshop and welfare
facilities.

Access from Baron Street would also be maintained and the new build able to connect via
tracks to the new Carriage Shed which is proposed to the south of the site.

It is therefore considered the layout and siting of the proposed Running Shed would be best
placed and positioned in relation to the functions and manageability of the ELR operations.

Track layout - It is proposed to make as much use of the existing tracks as possible but
works would be required to move/add to some of the track to facilitate train access to the
new building. It is noted that the existing lines leading to the LB carriage shed would main
unaltered.

Site storage - There are a number of shipping containers on the site, generally formed along
the eastern boundary but in a slightly haphazard arrangement. It is proposed to
re-configure the arrangement of the containers along the eastern boundary which would tidy
up and streamline this area of the site.

It is also proposed to provide a separate storage compound for the associated materials and
equipment which would further rationalise the site and better the overall arrangement.

Car park - This would be reconfigured to provide a formal parking layout in the eastern part
of the site close to the entrance, thereby improving parking provisions for staff and visitors.

In terms of access to the site, the existing entrance at the north east corner of Baron Street
would be the main access point for staff, volunteers, visitors and the smaller deliveries.
There is also an entrance from Baron Street at the north westerly corner of the site with the
proposal to utilise this access for the delivery of the locomotives and carriages by ELR
low-loaders.  This would require some improvement works and the setting back of gates
opposite Baron Street which form the entrance to the northern part of the Buckley Wells site,
which would enable such vehicles to manoeuvre the large loads.

In conclusion, it is considered that the proposed layout of the new buildings and extensions
to the existing LB, together with the provision of the re-configured accesses, car parks and
additional servicing/storage areas would provide a betterment of the existing arrangements,
enabling the site to function in a productive and sustainable way which would be of benefit to
all users, visitors and employees and in turn improve the service and attractions the ELR
provides.

The proposals therefore accord with the principles of the NPPF and UDP policies.

Design - The design concept for the development has been driven by a number of factors
including the need for the buildings to perform in a functional and practical fashion,
awareness to the sensitivities of the Listed Building, whilst being challenged by an ambitious,
potentially costly, but necessary scheme.

Turning to the works to the Listed Building, a scheme of restoration and repair is proposed,
including the complete overhaul and repair of the original windows, strip out of the roof to
incorporate a new breathable roofing felt re-using as many of the existing slates as possible,
replacing valley gutters and flashing and install new glazed roof lights. Internally, repairs

Page 18



and cleaning would be carried out to the walls, replacing roof trusses where necessary.

In terms of the extension to create office and welfare facilities to the front of the listed
building on Baron Street, it is proposed to form the front elevation with red brick to half way
with the remainder formed by zinc seam cladding. Bearing in mind the functionalities of the
building as industrial uses, and its position on Baron Street which is more susceptible to
street, this approach is considered acceptable maintaining appropriate definition between
new and old.

These works are considered in more detail in the application for Listed Building Consent, but
essentially it is concluded the fabric of the historic building would be sensitively treated and
restoration would ensure the longevity of the building for years to come.

The challenge comes in the addition to the western elevation of the heavy maintenance
workshop, as it is critical the new addition has a harmonious relationship to the LB in terms
of form, massing and design whilst fulfilling its necessary functions.

Instead of trying to replicate the LB which could result in a pastiche and poor imitation, the
approach is one of a modern and contemporary addition which would stand on its own
merits and distinguish it from the LB rather than vie for attention.

It is proposed to construct a portal framed build with a red brick plinth and steel built up
cladded elevations with intervening flat cladded panels on the north west elevation. The
roof would be hipped and able to support the mechanical extract plant which would be a key
part of the roof design, providing a modern equivalence to ventilation lanterns and
smokestacks found on more historic types of buildings.

Adding a modern style of build to a historic listed building is a common approach and in
respect of this scheme, with the identified constraints and deliverability issues, considered to
be an acceptable solution.

The design of the new Carriage Shed has similarly been driven by its function, size and
height requirements to accommodate machinery and locomotives/carriages, together with
the practicalities and costs of erecting the building. The design philosophy is the same as
that in the approach to the 1857 shed extension. The design therefore proposes a portal
frame profile metal clad industrial 'shed'. The use of cladding on the elevations would
express the functionality of the build as a large scale industrial use and the use of large span
portals would be a modern approach but equivalent in form and reflective of more historic
railway buildings, form following function.

Translucent roof lights and solar panels would feature into the design, allowing natural light
and energy saving mechanisms to be incorporated within the building without undue
attention being drawn to them.

It is therefore considered the proposed new carriage shed would sit comfortably within the
existing site in terms of its design and appearance and be a coherent and logical solution to
providing the essential facilities at the ELR site.

It is therefore considered the proposed development would be acceptable and comply with
Policies EN1/2, RT4/6 and the principles of the NPPF.

Environmental sustainability

The ELR have a commitment to incorporating sustainable design features and are keen to
explore initiatives for reducing the carbon footprint. It is therefore proposed to incorporate
sustainable drainage measures, low carbon energy, install solar panels to the roof of the
new builds and utilise surface water run-off from both the new buildings and the Listed
Building.

This approach is welcomed.

Page 19



Impact on the surroundings - The nearest properties are the residential dwellings on
Baron Street, the closest being the flatted development directly adjacent to the main site
entrance.

The ELR first use and development of Buckley Wells dates from the opening of the line in
1987 and since then has been used to house and maintain the early stock of carriages in the
open air, which has developed to become one of the most acclaimed centres within the
railway sector. Buildings and storage facilities have been added over time and large loader
vehicles carrying the locomotives have been delivered to and from the site for a number of
years, so local residents already experience a degree of noise and activity on the site plus
the comings and goings of traffic.

Whilst the proposed development would involve more built development by the erection of a
new separate carriage shed and extension to the Listed Building, these would provide better
working conditions, storage/garaging accommodation and facilities for works to, and storage
of the existing engines, carriages and other such associated machinery, and would not
necessarily involve further intensification of the use of the site than currently exists.

In terms of deliveries and traffic, again, this already occurs and the developments would
likely not exacerbate the current arrangements. The works proposed to Baron Street would
effectively improve access along the road and past the site, by increasing the width of the
road and providing a pedestrian footway.

In terms of the appearance of the site, the removal of the palisade fence along Baron Street,
the 'garaging’ of locomotives and the general rationalisation of the site to relocate the
storage containers and provide a formal parking area would tidy up and improve the
appearance of the site overall.

The extension to the Listed Building would be more than 40m away from the flats and mostly
screened by the existing LB. The new carriage shed would be over 200m away to the south
west and significantly distanced so as not to harm outlook.

The main disruptions would more likely be from the construction of the development, where
impacts can be minimised by conditions and legislation under the Environmental Protection
Act.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would not have a significantly
harmful impact on the amenity of the nearby occupiers, and moreover so would seek to
better the operations and appearance of the site.

As such, it is considered the proposed development would comply with policies EN1/2 and
RT4/6 and the principles of the NPPF.

Highways

The part of Baron Street which serves the site is unadopted and classified as a By Way
Open to All Traffic. The road surface along this stretch is a combination of tarmac and
cobbles. There is currently no separate pedestrian footway along this route.

Proposals include widening the part of Baron Street which serves the site to provide a 5.5m
wide carriageway and 1.8m wide footway on the southern side of the road. To facilitate
these works, the stone wall would be repositioned slightly further into the ELR land to the
north. The existing palisade fence which also forms part of the boundary to the ELR land
would be removed and replaced with a more appropriate and less visually intrusive paladin
type for additional security.

Generally speaking, the access arrangements for the low loaders and other HGV vehicles
would remain broadly similar to the existing arrangements.

Deliveries to the site of locomotives by low-loader vehicles currently take place at the
westerly access point which is formed by a set of gates and leads to a large piece of land

Page 20



next to the Listed Building. As it is proposed to site the extension to the LB closer to this
access, an area on the northern side of Baron Street opposite the entrance would be used,
with boundary fences and gates re-aligned to facilitate the manoeuvres of a low-loader
vehicle. This pushes deliveries away from residential properties.

Deliveries of the larger locomotives occur on a relatively infrequent basis (currently 10-12 a
year and projected to be 10-15 a year following the development) and it is therefore
considered these arrangements would be acceptable. The Highway Section have raised no
concerns or objections in this respect.

The access which is located to the east of the site is used by staff, volunteers and visitors
and the smaller delivery of goods. This would be retained and serve a car park which would
be formally laid out to provide just under 80 spaces including disabled spaces and EV
charge points. This would be more than adequate on a day to day basis where there would
not usually be more than 35 staff on site. Special events would require more staff on site
but there would be more than adequate parking facilities especially factoring in the northern
part of the Buckley wells site which has the capacity provide circa 30 spaces.

It is therefore considered that the proposed works to widen Baron Street and provide a
public footway would considerably improve movement along the road for pedestrians whilst
enabling the safe delivery of the large locomotives by low-loader vehicles to the site.
Improvements to the parking arrangements would also benefit the site and its users.

The Highway Section have raised no objection in principle subject to details which can
reasonably be addressed by conditions.

As such, the proposed development would comply with Policies EN1/2, HT2/4 and HT6/2
and the principles of the NPPF.

TfGM response

Trip Generation

The Transport Statement states that the extra number of personnel will not have an impact
but TfGM note that it is not clear if the extra visits will be considerable or not. TfGM would
suggest that further evidence is provided in terms of peak hour travel.

The applicant has responded as follows -

Of the proposed staff and visitors on site day to day (20 + 14 respectively), from the staff
travel surveys undertaken in January 2020 it appears that 89% travel by car and there is
some flexibility in times of arrival and departure. As a worst case scenario, even if all of
these trips were within the peak hours of 0800-0900 and 1700-1800, this equates to 30
vehicle trips. Some of these staff and volunteers are already using the site and making these
journeys.

On special event days there may be a further 8 volunteers on site. This level of traffic
generation does not warrant any further investigation and does not represent a severe
impact on the road network. The introduction of a Travel Plan will introduce measures to
reduce the use of the single occupancy car and encourage car sharing, cycling, walking and
use of public transport to reach the site.

The additional car parking will be utilised on occasion by staff and volunteers from across
the whole ELR, to free up parking at stations when large events are on.

The timing of the servicing of the site, particularly for the infrequent abnormal loads, can be
conditioned if necessary.

TfGM note this response and advise that consideration be given to large events which may
have an impact on the highway network locally if occurring during weekday peak hours.
This would be managed by ELR.

Site Sustainability
On the issue of the accessibility of the site, the Transport Statement includes a detailed

Page 21




breakdown of the accessibility of the site by foot, cycle and public transport. As the site is
located on the edge of Bury Town Centre it is in a sustainable location with excellent
accessibility and transport connections.

TfGM - Metrolink

The area edged red includes a large area of land that is owned by TfGM and whilst this does
not preclude the works from proceeding TfGM advise the applicant to expedite the
conclusion of the legal agreement currently being progressed.

Whilst it is considered that the development proposals are unlikely to affect Metrolink
operations, the site does adjoin the Metrolink boundary and therefore advise the applicant to
consult the safety at work information which is available.

Metrolink also request that the existing access arrangements for the maintenance of
Metrolink infrastructure should remain available at all times during construction unless
specific prior agreement has been reached with Metrolink. Advisory notes to the applicant
are recommended.

Ecology
Following the submission of the habitat and biodiversity report, on the request of GMEU, a
bat scoping report and additional biodiversity report have been submitted.

GMEU's original comments for the submission of this information have now been updated
and their response is as follows.

Summary
GMEU are satisfied that ecological matters can be resolved by conditions or informatives.

Bats

The carriage shed was assessed as having low bat roosting potential by a suitable
ecological consultant. This is because whilst there are numerous crevices for bats, these
do not lead to any voids, the building is well lit by roof lights and unlined, with no roof void
and the building subject to heavy engineering works. In line with best practice one
emergence survey has been recommended.

GMEU accept that the building is very unlikely to be an important roost site, but the
numerous minor roost features make it high risk for day roosts.  Day roosts on large
building such as this can however be very difficult to locate with reasonable avoidance
measures often a better way forward.

In this instance however the consultants have also noted that whilst refurbishment of the
listed building forms part of the planning application, no funding is actually available, the
funds that are in place for the phase 1 and phase 2 parts of the development, the new build,
which do not impact on this building. Funds will only be applied for, when and if planning
permission is in place and may not in any event be successful. There is no likelihood of
works commencing in 2022.

GMEU therefore accept that any dusk emergence survey at this time would not be valid by
the time development came forward and likely in any event to be inconclusive given the
scale of the building. It would therefore be unreasonable to request a survey that would be
likely both inconclusive and invalid by such time as development commenced.

GMEU are therefore willing to depart from best practice and recommend a condition be
applied to any permission for the submission of bat emergence surveys prior to the
refurbishment of the building.

Nesting Birds
The consultants were informed that feral pigeons nest in the building.  Pigeons are capable

of breeding throughout the year. Nesting pigeons have legal protection under the terms of
Page 22



the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) but are also listed as a pest species and a
'general license' can be applied for from Natural England to allow work to proceed that would
damage pigeon's nests, if present. GMEU therefore recommend a condition be applied to
any permission for a detailed bird nesting survey to be carried out prior to refurbishment
works.

Badgers
A survey has now been provided that found no evidence of badgers. This is in-line with

expectations. GMEU are however aware of badgers now been present in the wider areas, it
is therefore possible given the long timescale associated with the various phases of the
development that badgers could colonise but are however of the opinion that this risk is low.
It is therefore recommended that the survey is updated if earthworks are delayed more than
12 months from this survey carried out on the 4th October 2021. This would be a condition.
Invasive Species

A survey of the site has confirmed the presence of himalayan balsam and japanese
knotweed in close proximity to the site. No giant hogweed was located. Measure to
control the japanese knotweed are recommended but none proposed for the balsam.

Whilst accepting that eradication is unlikely to be feasible for balsam, given the seed bank
and presence of balsam on adjacent land, this still does not absolve the developer from
taking reasonable measures to prevent spreading this species off-site ie carrying out
localised control and biosecurity measures during construction.

A condition is now recommended for the submission of a method statement detailing
eradication and/or control and/or avoidance measures for himalayan balsam and japanese
knotweed.

Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment and the existing Wildlife Corridor
Section 174 of the NPPF states that the planning policies and decisions should contribute
to and enhance the natural and local environment.

GMEU accept that the reports general recommendations that mitigation through measures
along the Bury Grammar School boundary are likely to provide net gain.

The footprint of the development site has generally negligible ecological value but does form
part of a wildlife corridor that follows the route of the ELR and Metrolink through the Borough
and to Heywood, this section through Bury being a weak point in the corridor. The
development therefore provides an opportunity to strengthen the Wildlife Corridor through
native planting along the boundaries of the development site and enhancement of the
existing habitat to either side of the development platform.

Mitigation for loss of bird nesting habitat and potentially bat roosting habitat should also be
provided. Given the generally low ecological value of the site and large area of land
available to the ELR for mitigation to occur, GMEU are satisfied that the detail can be
resolved via a condition along the following lines.

Prior to development an ecological mitigation and enhancement plan shall be submitted
which shall include but not be restricted to:

e Mitigation for loss of trees;
e Mitigation for loss of bird nesting and bat roosting habitat and;
e Demonstrating enhancement of the Wildlife corridor

Subject to conditions, GMEU are satisfied that ecological issues can be resolved and are
acceptable.

Coal Authority
Confirm that the application site falls within the defined Development High Risk Area;
therefore within the application site and surrounding area there are coal mining features and
hazards which need to be considered in relation to the determination of this planning
application.

Page 23



The Coal Authority records indicate that the site is likely to have been subject to historic
unrecorded underground coal mining at shallow depth and that thick coal seams outcropped
across the site. Records also indicate the presence of one recorded mine entry (shaft) within
the planning boundary.

In support of the planning application, the applicant has submitted both an Interim Ground
Investigation & Risk Assessment Report (25 October 2006, prepared by Leyden Kirby
Associates Ltd) and a letter on a proposed foundation solution in lieu of further site
investigation and remedial works. It is noted that the Interim Ground Investigation & Risk
Assessment Report confirms that because of extensive investigation the recorded mine
entry in the approximate area of the Running Shed and Heavy Maintenance poses no undue
risk to the development.

Turning to the situation about potential shallow coalmine workings implicating on ground
stability, the Coal Authority accepts that because of the existing operating use, further
extensive intrusive investigation would not be practical. Consequently, and having
considered the structural precautions proposed in lieu of further investigation, the designs of
which have been informed from the very results of the site investigation, the Coal Authority is
satisfied the risks posed to the development following their implementation would be very
low. This is further reinforced when considering their relative lightweight construction.

The Coal Authority has no objections to this planning application and it will be the
responsibility of both the developer and the Building Regulations process to ensure that the
foundations proposed are installed accordingly.

Drainage - United Utilities have been consulted on the application and raise no objections to
the proposed development and recommend a condition for the submission of a drainage
scheme.

Objection

Rossendale Council objection - Summary

Rossendale Borough Council has submitted an objection to the proposal. Rossendale BC
recognise the value of the railway in terms of the role it plays in the cultural and visitor
economies of Rossendale, Bury and Rochdale and that the proposal would, in general
terms, bring positive additions to the railway, widen its appeal and enhance the engine and
carriage shed facilities to the benefit of the railway as a whole.

However, Rossendale BC is concerned that the application has been submitted without prior
due diligence and dialogue with them. They are concerned that the proposal will undermine
aspirations for a rail link from Rawtenstall to Manchester along the route of the railway and,
in particular, one of their leading options for a tram/train interchange at the junction of the
East Lancashire Railway and Metrolink which would require a single, uninterrupted track
between Bury Bolton Street station and Buckley Wells Interchange.

To avoid this, Rossendale Council suggest that the proposed new build carriage shed and
shunting lines would need to move approximately 5 metres in an easterly direction to allow
space for the dedicated connection line and also request that these applications be referred
to the Secretary of State for his decision due to their implications on future strategic transport
infrastructure in the region.

Responses to objection

Response by Bury LPA

An objection has been submitted by Rossendale Borough Council regarding the perceived
impact of the application on proposals for a commuter rail line connecting Rossendale with
Manchester, which includes a route through the Buckley Well site. The objection claims that
this commuter line would be undermined by the proposal.

However, there are no specific plans for the commuter line and there is no provision within
Page 24



the development plan that can be taken into account in considering this application.

Likewise, the proposal for a commuter line does not feature within the Greater Manchester
2040 Transport Plan, which was recently endorsed by the Council and the Combined
Authority.

Whilst it is acknowledged that Rossendale Council has historical and current aspirations to
provide a commuter line through Bury, at this time there is no evidence that such a proposal
is feasible, viable or deliverable. Therefore, very little weight can be attached to this
objection.

In terms of Rossendale's request for the application to be referred, the Council is required to
consult the SoS when it intends to approve certain types of application. The Buckley Wells
application does not fall within any of the criteria in the Direction that would require
consultation with the SoS.

The Direction does not affect the SoS's general power under S.77 to call in any planning
application and anyone can ask the SoS to call-in a planning decision. The policy of the
SoS, in general, is to only consider using call-in powers if planning issues of more than local
importance are involved.

If Rossendale Council wish the decision to be determined by the SoS instead of Bury
Council, they would need to ask the SoS and set out the reasons why they think it meets the
criteria. It is not for Bury Council to ask the SoS to make the determination.

Response to objection from ELR - Summary

The East Lancashire Railway have submitted a response to the objection from Rossendale
Borough Council specifying that, in their view the ELR have carried out proper due diligence
and fully engaged with Rossendale BC on the scope and development of the proposals for
the Buckley Wells heritage rail depot. This engagement has been undertaken through the
ELR Trust Board (which includes three representatives from Rossendale BC) who have
given their unanimous support to the proposal and agreed a grant to cover the costs of
professional fees needed to develop the planning application.

ELR also state that proposals for a commuter service have previously been considered to be
unfeasible and do not form part of the plans of the relevant strategic transport bodies.

The ELR have also highlighted that very considerable operational, technical, safety and legal
issues would have to be addressed to deliver Rossendale BC's aspirations for a dedicated
commuter line through the Buckley Wells depot.

ELR therefore believe that Rossendale BC's objection and aspirations for Buckley Wells
have no relevance to the planning and listed building consent applications for the Buckley
Wells heritage rail depot development.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Conditions/ Reasons

Page 25



The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.

Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

This decision relates to drawings -
Plans:

C-0340

01 Rev B (Existing Site Layout),

02 (Existing Running Shed Plans),

03 (Existing Running Shed SW, NE Elevations & Sections)

03-1 (Existing Running Shed SE & NW Elevations)

08 Rev H (Proposed Site Layout)

09 Rev C (Proposed Baron Street Improvement Works)

10 Rev B (Proposed Phasing Plan)

12 (Existing Ground Floor & Roof Plan)

100 Rev E (Proposed Carriage Shed Plan)

101 Rev D (Proposed Carriage Shed SW, NE Elevations & Section A-A)
101-1 Rev A (Proposed Carriage Shed SE & NW Elevations)

200 Rev D (Proposed Running Shed Ground Floor Plan)

200-1 Rev A (Proposed Running Shed First Floor Plan)

201 Rev B (Proposed Running Shed SW, NE Elevations & Section B-B)
201-1 Rev B (Proposed Running Shed SE & NW Elevations)

202 (Proposed Running Shed Elevation Details)

SLP Rev B (Site Location Plan)

TRI-2480-03-A1 (Existing Internal Elevations)
04 (Existing Sections)

TRI-2313 TRI-2313-01-A1 Existing Site Layout
02 A1 Existing Site Layout
03 A1 Existing Site Layout
04 A1 Existing Site Layout
05 A1 Existing Site Layout
06 A1 Existing Site Layout
07 A1 Existing Site Layout
08 A1 Existing Site Layout
09 A1 Existing Site Layout
10 A1 Existing Site Layout
11 A1 Existing Site Layout

Supporting Documents:

Additional Biodiversity Report by Blackfryers 20 Dec 2021 Final
Bat Scoping Report by UES 1 Dec 2021 ref UES 503532/01
Summary of proposed works Rev A

190626 ELR habitat report dated 25 June 2019 by Blackfryers
Structural Report

Interim Ground Investigation & Risk Assessment Report
PAS00020 ADVICE- Coal Authority

NX397 Coal Mining Risk Assessment Final
SCP_18638_Transport Statement_16.12.20_v3issue-by SCP
Appendix 6.3 Timberwise Survey Report

Survey of the Fabric- Buckley Wells- 1-302

Combined Heritage and Design & Access Statement

and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the
drawings hereby approved.

Page 26



Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

No development shall commence unless and until:-

e A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

e Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

e Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination

and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory

development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework

Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Prior to occupation the EV chargepoints shown on approved plan C-0340-08 rev H
shall be provided and shall thereafter be retained.

Reason - In accordance with the NPPF, to encourage the uptake of ultra-low
emission vehicles and ensure the development is sustainable. To safeguard
residential amenity, public health and quality of life.

No development shall commence until a surface water drainage scheme has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage
scheme must include:

(i) An investigation of the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning
Practice Guidance (or any subsequent amendment thereof). This investigation
shall include evidence of an assessment of ground conditions and the potential for
infiltration of surface water;

(i) A restricted rate of discharge of surface water agreed with the local planning
authority (if it is agreed that infiltration is discounted by the investigations); and

(iii) A timetable for its implementation.

Details of proposed maintenance arrangements should also be provided. The
approved scheme shall also be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical
Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent
replacement national standards.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the
approved drainage scheme.

Reason. The current application contains insufficient information regarding the
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact. To promote sustainable
development and reduce flood risk pursuant to Unitary Development Plan Policies
EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk , EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 -
Waste Water Management and chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate
change, flooding and coastal change of the NPPF.

Page 27



10.

11.

12.

Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.

Reason. To promote sustainable development and reduce flood risk pursuant to
Unitary Development Plan Policies EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk ,
EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 - Waste Water Management and chapter 14 -
Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change of the
NPPF.

In the peak activity season prior to refurbishment works commencing bat
emergence surveys shall be carried out and supplied to the Local Planning
Authority and a reasonable avoidance measures method statement for bats
produced and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 — Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 —
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

No refurbishment works shall occur unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably
experienced ecologist has been carried out immediately prior to works and written
confirmation provided that no active bird nests are present which has been agreed
in writing by the LPA unless the species present is feral pigeon, in which case a
general license issued by Natural England authorising destruction of feral nests
should be provided to the LPA.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

If the development hereby approved does not commence before1st October 2022,
a re-survey of the site and within 30m of the earthworks for badger setts will occur
and the findings supplied to and agreed in writing by the LPA.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Prior to any earthworks a method statement detailing eradication and/or control
and/or avoidance measures for himalayan balsam and japanese knotweed should
be supplied to and agreed in writing to the LPA. The agreed method statement
shall be adhered to and implemented in full. The approved management plan
shall include a timetable for implementation. Should a delay of more than one year
occur between the date of approval of the management scheme and either the
date of implementation of the management scheme or the date of development
commencing, a further site survey must be undertaken and submitted to the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual extent of
Japanese Knotweed and Himalayan Balsam in the interest of UDP Policy EN9 -
Landscape and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 11 -
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Prior to development an ecological mitigation and enhancement plan including but
not restricted to:

e Mitigation for loss of trees;
e Mitigation for loss of bird nesting and bat roosting habitat and;
e Demonstrating enhancement of the Wildlife corridor
The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented not later than 12 months
from the date the building(s) isFl;gateOchupied or within the first available tree



planting season,; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming severely
damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of planting shall be
replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally required
to be planted.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policies EN6/4 - Wildlife Links and Corridor, EN1/2 -
Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury
Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment of the NPPF.

13.  Prior to the removal of the boundary wall and/or palisade fence to Baron Street,
details of the proposed boundary treatment to Baron Street shall be submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details only shall be
implemented and thereafter retained.

Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and highway safety pursuant to Bury
Unitary Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and
HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

14.  The existing access arrangements to Metrolink infrastructure for maintenance
purposes should be remain available at all times during construction and post
construction unless specific prior agreement has been obtained from Metrolink.
Reason. To ensure that the development does not adversely impact Metrolink
operations pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies RT4/6 - East
Lancashire Railway, EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT4 - New
Development.

15.  Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations,
together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development
is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for the
construction of the development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity.

For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161
253-5320

Page 29



Ward: Bury East - Redvales ltem 02

Applicant: East Lancashire Light Railway Co. Ltd
Location: Buckley Wells Locomotive Depot, Baron Street, Bury, BL9 0TY

Proposal: Listed Building Consent for the development of the ELR's historic locomotive and
carriage works site including repair and restoration of the 1857 locomotive work
building, the construction of new locomotive running shed, incorporation of
associated new workshops and training facilities and construction of a standalone
carriage shed.

Application Ref: 66746/Listed Building Target Date: 17/05/2021
Consent

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

The Development Manager has recommended a site visit prior to the Planning
Control Committee meeting.

Description
The application relates to Buckley wells which is the location and facility of the locomotive
and carriageworks and rail depot for the East Lancashire Railway (ELR).

The site is located on Baron Street which is formed off Manchester Old Road. The eastern
part of Baron Street is adopted and comprises residential properties either side and an
apartment block located next to the site where Baron Street becomes an unmade and part
cobbled unadopted road, classified as a by-way open to all traffic (106 BUR) at which point
the main entrance on the site is formed to the south. Baron Street then continues
westwards to St Gabriel's School.

The overall Buckley Wells site area is 9.1ha. The main operational part of the site is 5.5ha
which is immediately to the south of Baron Street and comprises a Grade Il Listed
locomotive works/carriage shed building, an extensive network of railway sidings, storage
containers, open air storage for a wide range of railway infrastructure and engineering
components and parking areas.

This part of the site has a narrow elongated triangular form, with Baron Street forming the
the northern boundary, the eastern boundary defined by the Metrolink line which is
screened from the site by dense planting and to the west is a steep embankment. It is
within a Wildlife Corridor and partly within a River Valley.

This part of the site is the subject of this planning application.

The other areas of the Buckley wells site are located opposite, to the north of Baron Street
which is additional operational land comprises a 'modern' carriage shed building constructed
in the 1980's and further railway sidings. To the west is an area of un-used land set at a
lower level to the main site which is overgrown with self-seeded vegetation.

The ELR plays a key role in as a visitor and heritage attraction in the north west and has its
main workshop facilities located at the Buckley Wells site where the locomotives, carriages
and wagons are housed and where the essential locomotive and carriage operations,
maintenance and restoration facilities necessary to operate the successful heritage railway
are carried out.

In recent years the ELR Company has been pursuing a scheme of works to help improve
Page 30



visitor experience and Buckley Wells, as the centre for the railway operations, is the critical
and indispensable base for the storage and maintenance of historic locomotives and
carriages such as the Flying Scotsman.

The works are currently carried out in two buildings -

e a Grade Il Listed carriage shed building dating from 1857 which is located immediately
to the south of Baron Street. This houses the engineering facilities for the maintenance
and restoration of historic locomotives and facilities for both long term restoration
projects and operational locomotives in daily use. This building is deteriorating badly
and in need of significant investment to secure its longevity not only as a valuable
heritage asset but as vital facility for ELR and the site.

e a more modern carriage shed to the north of Baron Street which provides limited
facilities for restoration works and storage and is challenged by site constraints.

Not only is there a need to carry out critical works to the Listed Building but there is also a
need to provide additional purpose built provision for the fleet of locomotives and carriages
so they can be maintained to the highest possible standards expected of such an
established and high quality attraction.

There is also a need to expand the important and essential training facilities within the site
to attract and train up future generations of volunteer engineers necessary and crucial to
maintain and successfully operate the heritage railway for years to come.

In essence, development works are essential to facilitate the managed growth of the ELR
on a long term and sustainable basis as a premier visitor and heritage attraction.

The are 5 key elements to the redevelopment of the Buckley Wells site -

1. A comprehensive programme of restoration and repair to the Grade Il Listed historic
Buckley Wells carriage shed building. It will continue to be used for the restoration of
locomotives/general railway engineering operations including workshops and stores.
An extension to provide new offices would be located at the north end of the building to
support training, skills and various operations associated with the overall site.

2. An extension to the LB carriage shed to provide a new locomotive running shed and
maintenance workshop which would be located on the western side of the building and
on the footprint of a former original Buckley Wells engine shed (demolished in the
1970's). This new build would have a portal frame structure with steel clad elevations
which would also accommodate classroom/workshop areas, stores, and other ancillary
facilities.

3. The erection of a new carriage shed which would house, restore and repair the ELR's
fleet of historic railway coaches. This would be located on an area of sidings to he
south of the Listed Building, approx 90m away. The building would be vital to the
storing of the machines and engines and for the protection from the elements and
vandalism, particularly as their maintenance can take an extensive period of time. The
building would be formed by a base of red engineering brick with steel clad elevations
interspersed with a row of symmetrically aligned window openings. Solar panels would
be located on the roof. A new internal access road would be formed to this building.

4. Within the site some tracks would be re-laid to facilitate rail access to the new buildings.

5. ltis also proposed to rationalise the external part of the site to provide for the expanded
operational capacity of the site and would include new areas of hardstanding,
designated parking areas for staff and volunteers and external storage facilities in the
eastern part of the site.

This application seeks Listed Building Consent for these works.

The scheme is proposed as a phased development comprising 3 components -

Phase 1 - Lifting and relaying rail track to establish facilitate and new track layout and
rationalise the areas for storage around the site. The site would also be cleared for the
construction works for the new build.

Phase 2 - Construction of the new build carriage shed and vehicular access route to the

Page 31



building.
Phase 3 - Works to restore the Listed carriage shed and construction of the proposed
running shed.

Relevant Planning History

47480 - Workshop extension to carriage and wagon shed - Approve with Conditions
28/02/2007

49349 - Carrying out of an engineered fill operation prior to accommodating new rail track
infrastructure without the restriction within condition 10 of planning permission ref. 48268
that would limit the hours during which the importation of materials to carry out the operation
can take place. - Approve with Conditions 19/03/2008

49958 - Erection of 2.4 metre high paladin security fencing from the Metrolink boundary
along the length of the bury grammar schools playing fields access road boundary, and
returning along baron street to the east Lancashire railway level crossing (retrospective) -
Approve 19/09/2008

53647 - Renewal of planning permission 49349 to carry out engineering fill operation prior to
accommodating new rail track infrastructure - Approve with Conditions 20/04/2011

Publicity

Letters sent to 122 properties on 30/3/21.
Site notice posted 15/4/21

Press advert 1/4/21

No representations made by the public have been received.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations

Conservation Officer - No objection

G M Archaeological Advisory Service - No objection

Historic England - No objection

Rossendale Borough Council - Objection received. This is referenced in parallel
application reference 66745

Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent/has agreed with pre-start conditions

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
EC1/2 Land Suitable for Business (B1)
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design
EN2/3 Listed Buildings

EN6/4 Wildlife Links and Corridors

EN7 Pollution Control

EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution

OL5/2 Development in River Valleys
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development
HT3/4 Schemes to Assist Metrolink

HT4 New Development

HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict
RT4/6 East Lancashire Railway

SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

Area Bridge Road/Buckley Wells

BY2

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning

Page 32



considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Policies

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 Section 66(1) of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 require decision makers to have special
regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting or any feature of
architectural or historic interest it possesses. The decision maker must also give
considerable importance and weight to the desirability of preserving the setting of the listed
building.

The following policy of the adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan is relevant:
EN2/3 - Listed Buildings

The Council will actively safeguard the character and setting of Listed Buildings by not

permitting works, alterations or changes of use which would have a detrimental effect on

their historical or architectural character and features. Proposals for demolition will be

opposed and will only be considered where it is demonstrated conclusively that the

building(s) cannot be retained.

In considering applications for Listed Building Consent, the Council will have regard to the

following criteria: a) the impact of the proposal on the historic fabric of the building;

e the relationship of any extension to the Listed Building in terms of its height, size,
design, and roofscape;

e the need to protect the setting of the Listed Building;

e the impact of associated ancillary facilities and infrastructure works.

The setting of a Listed Building is often an essential feature of its character; unsympathetic
development in close proximity to a Listed Building can mar its appearance, make its future
use unattractive or untenable, or physically damage its structure. It is therefore important to
consider the effect that a proposed development may have on such buildings.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) —

The following paragraphs from Chapter 16 of the NPPF — Conserving and Enhancing the
Historic Environment and relevant:

194. In determining applications, local planning authorities should require an applicant to
describe the significance of any heritage assets affected, including any contribution made
by their setting. The level of detail should be proportionate to the assets’ importance and no
more than is sufficient to understand the potential impact of the proposal on their
significance. As a minimum the relevant historic environment record should have been
consulted and the heritage assets assessed using appropriate expertise where necessary.
Where a site on which development is proposed includes, or has the potential to include,
heritage assets with archaeological interest, local planning authorities should require
developers to submit an appropriate desk-based assessment and, where necessary, a field
evaluation.

195. Local planning authorities should identify and assess the particular significance of any
heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including by development affecting the
setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the available evidence and any necessary
expertise. They should take this into account when considering the impact of a proposal on
a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict between the heritage asset’s
conservation and any aspect of the proposal.

197. In determining applications, local planning authorities should take account of:

a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable
Page 33



communities including their economic vitality; and

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and
distinctiveness.

199. When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation (and
the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of
whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial
harm to its significance.

200. Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its
alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should require clear and
convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of:

a) grade Il listed buildings, or grade Il registered parks or gardens, should be exceptional;

b) assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments, protected wreck sites,
registered battlefields, grade | and II* listed buildings, grade | and II* registered parks and
gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly exceptional.

201. Where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to (or total loss of
significance of) a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities should refuse
consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or total loss is necessary
to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or all of the following

apply:
a) the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and

b) no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through
appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and

c) conservation by grant-funding or some form of not for profit, charitable or public
ownership is demonstrably not possible; and d) the harm or loss is outweighed by the
benefit of bringing the site back into use.

202. Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the
significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public
benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.

The NPPF at Annex 2 describes setting as:

Setting of a heritage asset: The surroundings in which a heritage asset is experienced. Its
extent is not fixed and may change as the asset and its surroundings evolve. Elements of a
setting may make a positive or negative contribution to the significance of an asset, may
affect the ability to appreciate that significance or may be neutral;

and

Significance (for heritage policy): The value of a heritage asset to this and future
generations because of its heritage interest. The interest may be archaeological,
architectural, artistic or historic. Significance derives not only from a heritage asset’s
physical presence, but also from its setting. For World Heritage Sites, the cultural value
described within each site’s Statement of Outstanding Universal Value forms part of its
significance.

Heritage Values and Significance —

The applicant has provided a comprehensive combined heritage and design and access
statement. This document sets out the significance of the shed, the requirement for
increased and improved facilities and the impact of the proposal on the buildings’
significance.

The following has been reproduced in part from the heritage values and significance part of

Page 34



the document.

Evidential Value — English Heritage (2008) suggests that "Evidential value derives from the
potential of a place to yield evidence about past human activity": Buckley Wells has
operated continuously as a locomotive depot since 1846. The site has adapted continuously
over the 173 year history of its use keeping it relevant as an operational locomotive depot.
Evidence of past development and evolution of the site as an operation loco depot can be
derived from four primary sources: archive material, historic mapping, archaeology and
photographic records.

Historical Value - English Heritage (2008) suggests that - "Historical value derives from the
ways in which past people, events and aspects of life can be connected through a place to
the present. It tends to be illustrative or associative": Buckley Well's principal historical value
lies in the fact that it is an extremely rare example of a still operational historic locomotive
works and depot with the use of the site dating back to 1846 placing it in the early phase of
railway development nationally and internationally.

The surviving building, the Listed 1857 loco works/carriage shed building, is the first
purpose built permanent building to be constructed on the site. This places it relatively early
within the development of the railways and therefore now as (potentially) the oldest
remaining operational locomotive works building in Europe.

Throughout its long history the site and the building have been associated with important
technological advances in locomotive and rail infrastructure development.

Communal Value - English Heritage (2008) suggests that: "Communal value derives from
the meanings of a place for the people who relate to it, or for whom it figures in their
collective experience or memory": There are several aspects to the ways in which
communal value can be attributed to the Listed 1855/57 loco works/carriage shed building
and the wider historic Buckley Wells locomotive depot site.

Early communal value would mainly be gained from the local work force that were employed
in the building. The building was not part of the public realm but solely an engineering
workplace. Over the last 35 years since the successful formation of the East Lancashire
Steam Railway the building has taken on a distinct and new sense of communal value as
follows:

e The building is now used by a new local workforce (circa 90 personnel) which use the
building on a full and part-time basis as they restore both engines and carriages.

e The building is now visited by various groups and railway enthusiasts as they seek to
learn and share engineering skills. Some of these volunteers have been associated with
this building for over 30 years.

e For visitors to the ELR heritage railway the communal value is largely hidden but vital.
Buckley Wells provides the essential engineering and operational support infrastructure
that enables visitors to enjoy and experience historic steam and diesel locomotives and
passenger carriages (which are heritage assets in their own right).

e For the active rail enthusiast (be it volunteer or professional engineer) the historic 1857
loco works/carriage shed building and wider Buckley Wells site affords major communal
value. Specifically, the opportunity that site provides for people to learn and practice a
wide range of critical heritage engineering skills and activities directly connects today's
volunteers and staff working out of the site with the past generations of rail engineers
working stretching back to the earliest days of the development of the railways.

Aesthetic Value - English Heritage (2008) suggests that: "Aesthetic value derives from the
ways in which people draw sensory and intellectual stimulation from a place". The Buckley
Wells site's aesthetic value derives principally in two areas:

o External aesthetics. The building presents itself as a functional Victorian Railway Shed
built with simple load bearing construction. It is built on a regular pattern of simple bays
which are expressed externally with brick pilasters, with a combination of glazed and
blind openings. The detailing of the building is enhanced with brickwork corbelling and
brick arches.

Page 35



¢ Internal aesthetics. The building retains its principle skeletal structural of internal
load-bearing columns with timber king-post and queen-bolt trusses. The internal
architecture remains in its original form and presents a virtually unspoilt aesthetic of the
original Victorian railway building.

The statement of significance concludes the site is the operational locomotive depot for the
ELR heritage railway whose use as a locomotive depot dates back to 1846, and where the
surviving building, the Grade Il Listed Locomotive Works/Carriage Shed building, is both the
first (and largest) purpose built building to be constructed on the site with the oldest parts of
the building dating from 1855-1857. Dating from the early period of railway development it is
believed to be the oldest surviving fully operational rail depot and locomotive workshop in
Europe.

The site's greatest significance therefore lies in the survival of the 1857 building as an
example of early industrial railway architecture and in the continuity of the use of the
building and site as an operational rail depot and locomotive works since 1846. This survival
is all the more remarkable because industrial railway architecture (and especially locomotive
works) is a very neglected part of the nation's industrial architectural heritage, with most of
the country's largest and most important historic locomotive works already lost to
redevelopment.

Through the assessment of the site and the distillation of the listed buildings' heritage
values it is considered the site and buildings possess overall moderate to high heritage
significance. There are some elements that possess minimal or low significance such as
external storage, modular buildings, non-historic rainwater goods, the extension to the
southern end of the shed which was part demolished in 1974 and the office extension built
in 1862 and is described in the Historic England listing description as not of special interest.
Impact of the proposals on the Listed Building -

The proposal comprises of the extension of the existing 1857 building on its west elevation
which would replace the previous extension built in 1875 and demolished in the 1970s.
This would comprise of a two bay 4 road running shed. It would be a steel portal
construction with a red brick plinth and steel cladding system. The roof would be hipped
with a ventilation louvre along its length with solar panels and a translucent rooflight.

In design terms the proposed extension draws inspiration from the original extension in
terms of its size and scale with an acknowledgement to the architectural style of the original
extension with its 2 bay construction and ventilation louvre. In terms of height the proposal
would not dominate the existing shed and would not create unacceptable massing.

Overall, the proposed extension does not attempt to be a pastiche of the original shed and
as such it does not challenge the architectural aesthetic of the listed building or confuse its
legibility as an historic building of merit and interest.

The proposed extensions to the 1862 offices at the north elevation of the shed also draws
inspiration from the existing structure by virtue of its materials and height. Although part of
the listing entry, this element does not possess any special interest. The proposed office
extension would provide much needed welfare, office and training facilities.

The proposed stand-alone carriage restoration workshop, carriage/diner and catering
accommodation shed would be sited to the south west of the 1857 shed and would be
within its setting. Its design philosophy is the same as that in approach to the design of the
1857 shed extension. It would be a portal frame 2 bay construction with brick plinth and a
steel cladding system, ventilation louvre, solar panels. lts height at approximately 16
metres would be approximately 4 metres higher than the highest part of the original 1857
shed. This would have an impact on its setting.

Setting of the Listed Building -

The setting of a listed building are the surroundings in which a heritage asset is
experienced. Its extent is not fixed and may change as the asset and its surroundings
evolve. Elements of a setting may make a positive or negative contribution to the

Page 36



significance of an asset and may affect the ability to appreciate that significance or may be
neutral.

It is important to note that setting is not a land use or a heritage value. Development within
or change to a setting can impact on the significance of the listed building. Buckley Wells
is an industrial site by its nature, its setting has changed over its lifetime with the addition
and removal of extensions to the original shed as well as addition and removal of
permanent and semi-permanent outbuildings. The site currently has a number of cabins
and carriages used as office space and for welfare and other ad hoc storge facilities within
the site and adjacent to the east elevation of the shed which have a negative impact on the
setting of the listed building. It is understood that proposals would allow these elements to
be removed. This would have a positive impact on its setting.

Heritage Balance and Conclusion -

Paragraph 201 of the NPPF states that where proposals amount to substantial harm to or
total loss of significance to a heritage asset the application should be refused. Itis
considered the proposals would not amount to this level of harm. The proposed extension
to the shed and office will not require any significant loss of historic fabric of the shed or
alter its use or adapt it in any way that would cause loss of significance as an architecturally
important railway building or the continuing use of the site as a railway depot. The
proposed extension would replace one that previously existed historically and as such
together with the office extension would represent a new addition to the building.  This
would represent less than substantial harm within the terms of paragraph 202 of the NPPF.
As such paragraph 202 of the NPPF requires that where a development proposal will lead
to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate,
securing its optimum viable use.

It is considered the proposed extensions would bring considerable public benefits in
protecting the long term viable use of the shed and site as heritage railway and which would
also be compatible with its conservation. It would facilitate the expansion of the heritage
railway in a viable and compatible way and using green energy securing its future as well as
bringing economic and educational benefits. As such the proposed extensions would
outweigh, by virtue of their public benefits, the less than substantial harm identified and
therefore would comply with paragraph 202 of the NPPF.

The proposed stand-alone carriage restoration workshop, carriage/diner and catering
accommodation shed would be sited to the south west of the 1857 listed shed and would be
within its setting. The size and proximity of the proposed building together with associated
works comprising of additional hardstanding and track layout would have an impact on the
setting of the listed 1857 shed. The question is whether or not the proposal would alter the
setting in such a way as to cause harm to the significance of the listed shed.

The site is an evolved and evolving industrial site. As a working railway depot, it is viewed
in close by and wider distances within its industrial site context. The proposed stand-alone
carriage shed would not alter this fact. However, the way in which the listed shed is
experienced would be altered by the proximity of the proposal but given the context of the
site this alteration would not lead to substantial harm to or total loss of significance with
regard to paragraph 201 of the NPPF. Therefore, the proposed stand-alone carriage shed
would represent less than substantial harm to the significance of the listed shed. This harm
would be outweighed by the considerable public benefits brought by the scheme as already
identified above.

The proposal would therefore preserve the identified special historic and architectural
significance of the Grade Il listed Buckley Wells locomotive and carriage shed and its
setting.

Internal and External Repairs to the Grade Il Listed Shed -
A comprehensive structural and condition report with a schedule of repair/restoration has

Page 37



been submitted as part of the listed building consent application. Careful consideration will
be given to the amount, scale and scope and level of intervention of the required
repairs/restoration. As a rule, repairs will be kept to the required minimum in order to
preserve the significance of the building and this will be balanced against the need to
preserve the fabric of the building with regard to air and water tightness and structural
integrity.

The repairs and restoration are acceptable and comprise of external roof repairs, window
repairs, external brick repairs and internal roof timber repairs.

Conditions would be imposed on any listed building consent for the formal assessment of
condition and method of repair, scope and intervention to be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority before the commencement of works for repair or
restoration.

It is recommended that a condition is also imposed for the submission of details of the
external finishes for the proposed extension and stand-alone carriage building to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority before any development
commences.

Consultee responses

Historic England - On the basis of the information available to date, HE do not wish to offer
any comments and suggest that the views of the LPA's specialist conservation adviser are
sought.

Greater Manchester Archaeological Advisory Service - The application is supported by
a detailed Combined Heritage and D&A Statement, prepared by Equilibrium Architects Ltd,
which sets out the historic development and interest in the site and presents a robust
assessment of the impact on the significance of the listed building and its setting, as
required by Section 16, Paragraphs 189 and 190, of the NPPF. The application is also
supported by a detailed survey of the building's fabric and structure, which provides a
comprehensive record of the buildings 'as existing'. The Bury Conservation Officer may wish
to advice further on the listed building, but GMAAS is not seeking any further archaeological
investigation of the historic built environment.

The application is not supported by an archaeological desk-based assessment that
specifically considers the potential impact of the proposed development on below-ground
archaeological remains. However, from a review of the historic mapping available for the
site and the detail presented in the documentation supporting the application, it is evident
that the impact on below-ground archaeology is unlikely to be anything other than negligible.
As such, GMAAS does not consider it necessary to impose any archaeological
requirements on the applicant.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Conditions/ Reasons

Page 38



The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason - Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 18 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

This decision relates to drawings -
Plans:

C-0340

01 Rev B (Existing Site Layout),

02 (Existing Running Shed Plans),

03 (Existing Running Shed SW, NE Elevations & Sections)

03-1 (Existing Running Shed SE & NW Elevations)

08 Rev H (Proposed Site Layout)

09 Rev C (Proposed Baron Street Improvement Works)

10 Rev B (Proposed Phasing Plan)

12 (Existing Ground Floor & Roof Plan)

100 Rev E (Proposed Carriage Shed Plan)

101 Rev D (Proposed Carriage Shed SW, NE Elevations & Section A-A)
101-1 Rev A (Proposed Carriage Shed SE & NW Elevations)

200 Rev D (Proposed Running Shed Ground Floor Plan)

200-1 Rev A (Proposed Running Shed First Floor Plan)

201 Rev B (Proposed Running Shed SW, NE Elevations & Section B-B)
201-1 Rev B (Proposed Running Shed SE & NW Elevations)

202 (Proposed Running Shed Elevation Details)

SLP Rev B (Site Location Plan)

TRI-2480-03-A1 (Existing Internal Elevations)
04 (Existing Sections)

TRI-2313 TRI-2313-01-A1 Existing Site Layout
02 A1 Existing Site Layout
03 A1 Existing Site Layout
04 A1 Existing Site Layout
05 A1 Existing Site Layout
06 A1 Existing Site Layout
07 A1 Existing Site Layout
08 A1 Existing Site Layout
09 A1 Existing Site Layout
10 A1 Existing Site Layout
11 A1 Existing Site Layout

Supporting Documents:

Additional Biodiversity Report by Blackfryers 20 Dec 2021 Final
Bat Scoping Report by UES 1 Dec 2021 ref UES 503532/01
Summary of proposed works Rev A

190626 ELR habitat report dated 25 June 2019 by Blackfryers
Structural Report

Interim Ground Investigation & Risk Assessment Report
PAS00020 ADVICE- Coal Authority

NX397 Coal Mining Risk Assessment Final
SCP_18638_Transport Statement_16.12.20_v3issue-by SCP
Appendix 6.3 Timberwise Survey Report

Survey of the Fabric- Buckley Wells- 1-302

Combined Heritage and Design & Access Statement

and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the
Page 39



drawings hereby approved.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

Details of the external finishes of the locomotive shed extension and stand-alone
carriage shed hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority before any development commences. Only the
approved materials/bricks shall be used for the construction of the development.
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt, in the interests of visual amenity and to
ensure a satisfactory standard of repair and to preserve the significance of the
Grade Il listed Buckley Wells Carriage Shed pursuant to adopted Bury Unitary
Development Plan policy EN2/3 - Listed Buildings and paragraphs 194, 195, 197,
199, 200, 201 and 202 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Repairs/replacement to the roof covering shall be carried out in accordance with
the submitted Survey of Fabric - C-0340 Revision A and relevant Grid Survey
Reference, Timberwise Report - G62753-GF-CRW and Booth King Structural
Engineer Report - 12889 using the existing natural slates and any replacements
required shall be of the same type, size, thickness and colour of natural slate as
the existing original natural slates.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
repair and to preserve the significance of the Grade Il listed Buckley Wells
Carriage Shed pursuant to adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan policy EN2/3 -
Listed Buildings and paragraphs 194, 195, 197, 199, 200, 201 and 202 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Repairs/restoration/replacement of the internal roof timbers shall be carried out in
accordance with the submitted Survey of Fabric - C-0340 Revision A and relevant
Grid Survey Reference, Timberwise Report - G62753-GF-CRW and Booth King
Structural Engineer Report - 12889.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
repair and to preserve the significance of the Grade Il listed Buckley Wells
Carriage Shed pursuant to adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan policy EN2/3 -
Listed Buildings and paragraphs 194, 195, 197, 199, 200, 201 and 202 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Cleaning and re-pointing the internal and external brickwork shall be carried out in
accordance with the submitted Survey of Fabric - C-0340 Revision A and relevant
Grid Survey Reference. Raking out of brickwork shall be carried out by hand only
and power tools shall not be used.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
repair and to preserve the significance of the Grade Il listed Buckley Wells
Carriage Shed pursuant to adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan policy EN2/3 -
Listed Buildings and paragraphs 194, 195, 197, 199, 200, 201 and 202 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Samples of replacement brick to be used in any repairs shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the replacements are
used.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
repair and to preserve the significance of the Grade Il listed Buckley Wells
Carriage Shed pursuant to adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan policy EN2/3 -
Listed Buildings and paragraphs 194, 195, 197, 199, 200, 201 and 202 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Details of the repair, restoration, or replacement of timber window frames and
Page 40



glazing shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority before works to repair the windows are started or windows replaced and
shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Survey of Fabric - C-0340
Revision A and relevant Grid Survey Reference and Timberwise Report -
G62753-GF-CRW. Details must include a condition report of the existing windows,
method statement of repair, details of deign and section drawing showing window
set back reveal where appropriate. The approved details only shall thereafter be
implemented.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
repair and to preserve the significance of the Grade Il listed Buckley Wells
Carriage Shed pursuant to adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan policy EN2/3 -
Listed Buildings and paragraphs 194, 195, 197, 199, 200, 201 and 202 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

9. Details of replacement timber doors in accordance with Survey of Fabric - C-0340
Revision A and relevant Grid Survey Reference shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the replacements are
used.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
repair and to preserve the significance of the Grade Il listed Buckley Wells
Carriage Shed pursuant to adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan policy EN2/3 -
Listed Buildings and paragraphs 194, 195, 197, 199, 200, 201 and 202 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

10.  Details of the replacement western rooflight and lantern to the shed shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the
rooflight or lantern is replaced and shall be carried out in accordance with the
submitted Survey of Fabric - C-0340 Revision A and relevant Grid Survey
Reference and Timberwise Report - G62753-GF-CRW. Details must include a plan
showing the details of design. the approved deatisl only shall thereafter be
implemented.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of repair
and to preserve the significance of the Grade Il listed Buckley Wells Carriage Shed
pursuant to adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan policy EN2/3 - Listed
Buildings and paragraphs 194, 195, 197, 199, 200, 201 and 202 of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

11.  Details of replacement gutters, downpipes and hoppers if appropriate shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the
replacements are carried out. The approved details only shall thereafter be
implemented.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
repair and to preserve the significance of the Grade Il listed Buckley Wells
Carriage Shed pursuant to adopted Bury Unitary Development Plan policy EN2/3 -
Listed Buildings and paragraphs 194, 195, 197, 199, 200, 201 and 202 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161
253-5320

Page 41






Viewpoints

BUCKLEY
WELLS

/e
7 |

=

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 66745 / D ;
ADDRESS: Buckley Wells Locomotive Depot /

Baron Street S COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 43




66745

Photo 1

Page 44



66745

Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 45


66745


66745

Photo 5

Photo 6

Page 46


66745


66745

Photo 7

Photo 8

i ‘
H | H_I' il \"N “ "“"w 0 \" / m\"w Iu‘ ! w“l' i “‘ﬂ )

| IR It
M ‘| Il I’Eé_ l ‘||| i ‘||\ M‘|||‘H,‘\. I ,L“\Il\\\ il \I

Page 47


66745


66745

Photo 9

Photo 10

Page 48


66745


66745

Photo 11

Photo 12

Page 49


66745


66745

Photo 13

Page 50


66745


TS abed

QY
“@b
oo

e

1o

Site Location plan
Scale 1:1250

m 20m 40m 60m S0m

g
\»(3““0%

X
\»0“‘00\

3
w““‘“g

3
\9@1’0%

b
\u““\“\‘

o

Wi
\»Q“L“\’

3
»0“%6L

3
»““6&

=

2\
»0°66“

N
\9@0“\

N

5
»00\“\

This drawing i the property of Equifbrium Architects and
copyright s reserved by them. This drawing is not to be

All materials and workmanship to be in accordance with the
curtent Brtish Standards and codes of pracice.

copied or y or o any
the prior witen consent of Equibrum Archiects.
Do not scale from tis draving
site prior
menufacture of any companents and ardering of materials and
equipment.
Any discrepencies are fo be reported o the archiect for
clarfcaton.

in conj al relevent
Architectural, Structural Engineers, Mechanical Engineers,
Electicel Engineers and Specialiss drawings and
specifications,

Aswith projects the COM

Principal Designer because there may be more then one
contractor working on sie. The Principal Designer willbe able
1o coorinate the pre-consiruction information and also ensure
that all duty holders under COM comply vith thir relevant
duties.

The buikling owner s 0 serve a Party Wall Act Notie as

apply and the work on ths project may reduire both the issue:
of anotfication to the HSE (because of the durationof the
wiorks on site) and the client may also needto appointa

TheParty Wall Act 1996. The Building Contactor s o verify
the thickness of the party walls prior to commencement of the
proposed works.

EAST LANCASHIRE RAILWAY,

X &
&00““\ &0@0

5
\»G“QQV

5 Upcasaran/Bhs IngtoClrs comme.
[T A ——

East Lancs Railway

PROEGT

ELR Buckley Wells Masterplan

G

Site Location Plan

1:1250@A1

GEoeD

3
Sept' 2018 ‘

TGO,

C-0340-SLP

e

equilibrivm

435437 Wamrsey Road Bury Lancashi BLYSEU T 0161767 2077 F-0161767 2088
info@aquibiimarchtectso.uk wwaqibimarchlocts ok




Listed 1857 Loco Works / Carriage Shed

i
Baron Street

Temporary buiking

o be demolished

Existing Site Plan Detail
Scale 1:500

o 10m 20m 30m 40m

L

This drawing i the property of Equifbrium Architects and
copyright s reserved by them. This drawing is not to be

Existing Site Plan

All materials and workmanship to be in accordance with the
curtent Brtish Standards and codes of pracice.

copied or y or o any
the prior witen consent of Equibrum Archiects.
Do not scale from tis draving

Scale 1:2000

om 40m 80m 120m

site prior
menufacture of any companents and ardering of materials and
equipment.

Any discrepencies are fo be reported o the archiect for
clarfcaton.

in conj al relevent
Architectural, Structural Engineers, Mechanical Engineers,
Electicel Engineers and Specialiss drawings and
specifications,

Principal Designer because there may be more then one
contractor working on sie. The Principal Designer willbe able
1o coorinate the pre-consiruction information and also ensure
that all duty holders under COM comply vith thir relevant

Temjorary building to be:
derglished (Exising ofice. |

e facility & meeting o

m)

A,

- N
?:'ffmg owner i o serve a Party Wall Act Nofice as. AST LANCASHIRE RAI LWA

Aswith projects the CDM
apoly and the work on this project may require both the issue
of anoifcaton to the HSE (because of the durationof the
works on site) and the client may also need to appint a

TheParty Wall Act 1996. The Building Contactor s o verify
the thickness of the party walls prior to commencement of the
proposed works.

—

e

East Lancs Railway

PROEGT

ELR Buckley Wells Masterplan

e

Existing Site Layout

e o ez =
1500@A1 | Sept 2018 ‘ PB

v o
C-0340-01 B

equilibriurm

435437 Wamrsey Road Bury Lancashi BLYSEU T 0161767 2077 F-0161767 2088
info@aquibiimarchtectso.uk wwaqibimarchlocts ok




Legend:

Red Engineering Brickwork

Steel Build-up cladding system, colour TBC

New Steel Door on Rail Safety High Contrast Colour
Polycarbonate Trapezoidal Translucent Rooflight
Solar Panels

Concrete Hardstanding

Existing Ground Finish: Gravel & stone Setts

New Ground Finish: Gravel

New Palisade Security Fence & Gate
Existing Access Gate to Metrolink

Existing Building Restauration & Repair vith
Intemal Modifications, refer to Condition Survey
Rationalised Exteral Storage Area

(Relocated Shipping Containers)

Zinc Standing Seam Cladding
Curtain Walling

Red Brickwork to Match Existing
Ventilation Louvre

Indicative Parking Layout (Unmarked)

Existing Electrical Switch Room to be Relocated

Flat Cladding Panels with Clearly Espressed Panel Joints
to Reveal the Structural Grid of the Building

Dark Grey Painted Steelwork

00 PEPOPPRO @ 9OOVEPOPVOEEO

New Paladin Fence & Gate

3 s el
@ : . e Disset Tk

I 1 T

o4
I 1 e
i =

o4 [m—

iz it = T

T 1K B

)

i T —J

B @ A LSTED 857 WA\ LOCO RESTCEATIONKMAINTEUANC
S (M —

. 1o 1o et o 1 o o t ot ot o t ot ten o

P05 Aecess g

Proposed Site Plan Detail
Scale 1:500

m 10m 20m 30m

____ A
AST LANCASHIRE RAlLWA
R ______

East Lancs Railway

ELR Buckley Wells Masterplan

o
Proposed Site Layout
: o e ‘
o 1:500@A1 | Sept 2018 PB
[ @ 5 e
‘This drawing s the property of Equillorium Architects and Al plobein the Principal De becaus there may be more than one C-0340-08 H

copyright s reserved by them. This drawing is not to be current Brifish Standards and codes of practice.
copied o disclosed by or to any unauthorised persons without  This crawing i fo be read i conjunction with allrelevant

contractor working on site. The Principal De willbe able:
o caorinate the pre-consiructon information and also ensure

Proposed Site Plan

Scale 1:2000 the prior writen consent of Equilbrium Architects. Architectural, Structural Engineers, Mechanical Engineers, that al duty hoklers under CDM comply with their relevant b N
Do not scale from this draving Electrical Engineers and Specialists dravings and duties H m
o om £om Al st prior specifcations. The building owner i fo serve a Party Wall Act Nofics a5 ufu, Cﬁk ‘ @, l

menufacture of any companets and ordering of materials and
equipment.

Any discrepencies are o be reported o the architect for
clrifcaton.

As with all constructon projects the COM 2015 regulatons
apply and the work on this project may require both the issue
of 2 nofiication o the HSE (because of the duratonof e
works on site) and the client may also need 1o appoint a

applcable o adjoining property owners as outlined in
TheParty Weall Act 1996, The Buiking Contactoris f veriy

the thickness of the party walks prior fth
proposed worts.

rive BLOSEU T 0161797 2077 F: 0161 707 2088
k. wonscqulbrumarchiact ok

nfo@equlbiumarchie




This draning s the propetyof Equlbrum Archects and copyrght s
reserved by them. This drawig i ot 1o be copled or diclosed by or
1o any unautherised persons wihout the prio witen consent of
Equibrium Architects.

Do ot scal from this drawing,
Al dmensions ae to be checked on se prorto constructon,
manufacture o any companents and rdering o materls and
equipment.

Any iscrepencies areto be eported fo the arehiect forclaication

Allmatril and workmanshp to be n accordance with the curent
Brish Standards and codes of pactce.

This draning st be read in conjunction it all relevant Archtectural,
Structural Engineers. Mechanical Enginers, Electical Engineers and
‘Specalsts drawings and speciicatons

A5 wth all constucton pojects the COM 2015 regulatons apply and

the workan thisprject my requre both th fssue of  notfiaton o

the HSE (becauseofthe curatinofthe works on sit) and th chent

may asa need to appint a Pincipal Designer because tere may be
irsctor working an it

The Printipal Designer wil b abl to coonate th pre-consincton

infomaton an aks ensure that all duty hlders under COM conph

G0 R © s

PP 9 P F PP R W

i P Pt et ks
Thebulling owneris o serve @ Paty Wal At Notce as aplcable
I e 1o adoinng poperty wners s outined n ThePart Wall Act 1988
@ [E i 1l | Il [ I The Buiding Contacor it very the Uhckness o the pary wallspior
T I I | I | I o commencement ofthe roposed works.
® 0 2 0 D ¢ 3
Proposed South East Elevation
S 200 North West Elevation
s
j| |
i |
H
H
£ of : ————
HE T — i — 1+
8
i P s = it
[ ~
L% 14
\ X -
RS ks Key Plan South East Elevation
” - Scale 1:1000
L T
s vs Hd £ | AST LANCASHIRE RA\LWA
—_— S —

| - i . [ , Q«

e

East Lancs Railway

ELR Buckley Wells Masterplan

Proposed Carriage Shed
South East & North West Elevations

Proposed North West Elevation
Scale 1:200 g 3 EQ
@  Red Enginesring Brickwork @  Existing Ground Finish: Gravel & stone Sefts @  curtan waling 1200@A1 | Sept 2018 ‘ B
@  steel Build-up dladding system, colour TBC New Ground Finish: Gravel @  Red Brickwork to Match Existing e s o —
@  Newsteel Door @  Palisade Security Fence @  ventlation Louwvre C-0340-101-1
@  Polycarbonate Trapezoidsl Translucent Roofight @  Existing Access Gate to Metroink @  indicative Parking Layout (Unmarked)
®  solar Panels @  Existing Building Restauration & Repair with @@  Existing Electrical Switch Room to be Relocated o
e ottt S S equilibrium
om S 1om 15m 20m oncrete ardstanding @  Rationalised Extemal Storage Area (Relocated
Shipping Containers) 57 Walvarlo s By Lo Bl 479 207 F 0101 75 2088
@  zinc stending seam Cladding ey

North East Elevation




GG abed

Proposed South West Elevation

Scale 1:2
CRiT
¥ T~ —~ | | |
Y‘« i

Proposed North East Elevation
Scale 1:200

mn, 7630.0
tou/ s haunch

Proposed Sectlon A-A
Scale 1

CISIOCICSICESRSISICICISIOISICIOIOIC)

Legend:

Red Engineering Brickvork

Steel Build-up cladding system, colour TBC
New Steel Door

Polycarbonate Trapezoidal Translucent Rooflight
Solar Panels

Concrete Hardstanding

Existing Ground Finish: Gravel & stone Setts
New Ground Finish: Gravel

Palisade Security Fence

Existing Access Gate to Metrolink

Existing Building Restauration & Repair with
Intemal Modifications, refer to Condition Survey

Rationalised Extemal Storage Area (Relocated
Shipping Containers)

Zine Standing Seam Cladding
Curtain Walling

Red Brickwork to Match Existing
Ventilation Louvre

Indicative Parking Layout (Unmarked)

Existing Electrical Swiitch Room to be Relocated

orium Archi
rosonod by hem. s Gawng 1ot hempwed or disclosed hy o
e pio

Equibrium Architects,

Do not scele from ths drawing.

are ste prior
menufecture of any components and ordering of mteials and
equipment

Any discrepencies are fo be reported to the architect for carificafion.

Allmeterials and workmanship t be in accordance with the current
Brtsh Standerds and codes of practice.

This drawings to b readin conjunciion with allrelevant Architecturel
Structural Enginers, Mechanical Engineers, Electical Engneers and
Specialsts drawings and specficatons.

Aswith allconstructon projects the COM 2015 regulations apply and
the work on this project may require both the issue of a notfication to
the HSE (because ofthe durationof the works on ste) and the client
may also need fo appoint a Principal Designer because there may be
more than one contractor working on sie.

The Principal Designer willbe able {0 coorinatethe pre-constuciion
information and also ensure that allduty holders under CDM comply
withthei relevant dutes.

The buikling ovner s 1 serve a Perty Wall Act Notce as applcable
10 adjoining property owners as outlined n TheParty Wall Act 1996
The Builing Contactor s o verythe tickness of the pary wals prior
to commencement of the proposed works.

North West Elevation

.

North East Elevation

Lol I

5
I L T
2l et
12
Key Plan

Scale 1:1000

South East Elevation

0 Asoks 2ammamn

CECAPIO TEX DVE

r

East Lancs Railway

ELR Buckley Wells Masterplan

T
Proposed Carriage Shed
South West, North East Elevations & Section A-A
: o e
1:200@A1 Sept‘ 2018 PB ‘
[ 2 e
C-0340-101 D

florium

QU

o

rive BLOSEU T 0161797 2077 F: 0161 707 2088
k. wonscqulbrumarchiact ok

435437 Wakmersly Road Bury Lan
nfo@equlbiumarchie




Proposed Ground Floor Plan

l PAINT SHOP l

T T
L L

ryed mantenance piatiqrm

R T i

OFFICE

MALE
GHANGING

FEMALE

CHANGING.

STORES 75

FABRICATION WORKSHOP

ACHINE SHOP

'STORES AND WORKSHOP

concrete apron

|
|
T
:

|
|

CARRIAGE AND DINER SHED

Scale 1:200
0m 5m 10m 15m
Legend:

CIGICIOIOIS)

Red Engineering Brickwork

Steel Build-up cladding system, colour TBC
New Steel Door

Polycarbonate Trapezoidal Translucent Rooflight
Solar Panels

Concrete Hardstanding

@
®
®
©
@
@
®

Existing Ground Finish: Gravel & stone Setts
New Ground Finish: Gravel

Palisade Security Fence

Existing Access Gate to Metrolink

Existing Buikding Restauration & Repair with
Internal Modifications, refer to Condtion Survey
Rationalised External Storage Area (Relocated
Shipping Containers)

Zine Standing Seam Cladding

BISEE

Curtain Walling
Red Brickwork to Match Existing
Ventilation Louvre

Indicative Parking Layout (Unmarked)

Existing Electrical Swiitch Room to be Relocated

Y 4o =N
I G KITCHEN STAFF ‘ 5 ‘ GUARDS
p— ! I | CHANGING CHANGING
e FOOD STORE E
OFficE OFfiCE
"

CATERING ACCOMODATION

nores

A

}
K

Aot sl kg boys
Upds ol L asedcolurs

ST LANCASHIRE RAILWAY,

CECAPIO

E

r

ast Lancs Railway

ELR Buckley Wells Masterplan

RaG

Proposed Carriage Shed Ground Floor Plan

Ths drawing is the property of Equilbrium Architects and
copyright s reserved by them. This drawing is not to be
copied or disclosed by or to any unauthorised persons without

the prior witen consent o Equiibrium Architects.

Do not scale from tis draning
i

site pr

menufacture of any companets and ordering of materials and

equipment.

Any discrepencies are o be reported o the architect for

clarification.

Al meterials and viorkmansip 1 be in accordance vith e
current Brifish Standards and codes of practice.

This drawing is o be read in conjunction wit all relevant
Architectural, Structural Engineers, Mechanical Engineers,
Ektrical Engineers and Specialsts cravings and
specifications.

As with all constructon projects the COM 2015 regulatons
apply and the work on this project may require both the issue
of 2 nofiication o the HSE (because of the duratonof e
works on site) and the client may also need 1o appoint a

Prncipal Designer because there may be more than one
contracior working on site. The Principal

o coorinate the pre-constuction nformation and also ensure
that alcuty holders under COM comply wittheir elevant
duties,

The buiding owner i to serve a Party Wall Act Nofice as
applcable o adjoining property owners as outlined in
TheParty Weall Act 1996, The Buiking Contactoris f veriy

the thickness of the party walks prior fth
proposed worts.

g o
nfo@equlbiumarchie

1:200@A1 ‘ Sept 2018 PB ‘
C-0340-100 E
will be able
equilioriun

k. wonscqulbrumarchiact ok




1S abed

This draning s the propetyof Equlbrum Archects and copyrght s
reserved by them. This drawig i ot 1o be copled or diclosed by or
1o any unautherised persons wihout the prio witen consent
Equibrium Architects.

Do ot scal from this drawing,

Al dmensions ae to be checked on se prorto constructon,
manufacture o any companents and rdering o materls and
equipment.

Any iscrepencies areto be eported fo the arehiect forclaication

Allmatril and workmanshp to be n accordance with the curent
Brish Standards and codes of pactce.

This draning st be read in conjunction it all relevant Archtectural,
Structural Engineers. Mechanical Enginers, Electical Engineers and
‘Specalsts drawings and speciicatons

A5 wth all constucton pojects the COM 2015 regulatons apply and
the workan thisprject may requie both th fssue of a notfiaton o
the HSE (becauseofthe curatinofthe works on sit) and th chent
may asa need to appint a Pincipal Designer because tere may be
irsctor working an it

The Printipal Designer wil b abl to coonate th pre-consincton

infomaton an aks ensure that all duty hlders under COM comply
it ther efevant dtes.

The bulding owner st senve a Party Wall Act ot as appiable
o adjining prperty owners as ouined n TheParty Wall At 109
The Bulding Contactor it verlyte thickness o the party wallsprior
o commencementofthe proposed works.

Proposed South East Elevation
00

Scale 1:2
North West Elevation
< of - [ <
g 2 s
5 of i I
K] o H
8 1 = [
H = | L |z
= o] I ) 1 E
Hi=
== ld
Key Plan South East Elevation
Scale 1:1000
| A
- »
o ————————————rrrrrrrrrrrrr T AST LANCASHIRE RAILWAY)
e e T > .« : ey
l|||||| II ‘ ‘ | ‘
HHHH "7 o
=03
- g - - 5 - = > >">>»>»—»—n— = = i e
i Butding Proposed Runing Led 1857 Loco Work / artage Shd~ Elevaton Dt 1 EestLancs Raway
Proposed North West Elevation ELR Buckley Wells Masterplan
Scale 1:200
Legens @  Edsting uiting Restauraton § Repor win —
Intemal Modifcations, rfer o Condition Survey
@  Red Engneering Brickwork @  Retonslsec Extema Storage Ares (Relocated Proposed Running Shed
@  steel Build-up cladding system, colour TBC ‘Shipping Containers) South East & North West Elevations
(®  ew Siee Dooron R Saey o Conas ol ® 2 sening seom g ; e
Curtain Wl
@  Polycarbonate Trapezoidal Transiucent Roofight g rien Wellng 12000A1 | Sept 2018 ‘ P8
Red Brickuork to Match Existing [ v
®  solorponas
@  indcatve Parking Layout (Unmarkec)
@ n 100 1 om @ st rouns s e s s @®  Existing Electrical Switch Room to be Relocated
New Graund Fins Gravel st
@  FintClacing Panel wih Cieaty Espressed Pan Jonts
®  Palisase Secuiy Fence o Reveal he Sructural Grid of e Building
@  Exsting Access Gate o Merolnk @  Derk Grey Painted Steelwork T B s 005 100 37 £ 00175 2




g6 abed

[

100

m

dnin Builki

Proposed North East Elevation
Scale 1:200

° 2 %% 99

Proposed South West Elevation
Scale 1:200

QE ®

@—'—/j

T

Proposed Section B-B
Scale 1:200

SNCISISIICISIORSESISICIOISIOIOISICIOIS)

Legend:

Red Engineering Brickwork

Steel Build-up cladding system, colour TEC
New Steel Door on Rail Safety High Contrast Colour
Polycarbonate Trapezoidal Translucent Rooflight
Solar Panels

Conrete Hardstanding

Existing Ground Finish: Gravel & stone Setts
New Ground Finish: Gravel

Palisade Security Fence

Existing Access Gate to Metrolink

Existing Building Restauration & Repair vith
Intemal Modifications, refer to Condition Survey

Rationalised External Storage Area (Relocated
Shipping Containers)

Zine Standing Seam Cladding

Curtain Walling

Red Brickwork to Match Existing

Ventilation Louvre

Indicative Parking Layout (Unmarked)

Existing Electrical Switch Room to be Relocated

Flat Cladding Panels with Clearly Espressed Panel Joints
to Reveal the Structural Grid of the Building

Dark Grey Painted Steelwork

property of Equilr is
reserved by them. This dreving i not to be copied or isclosed by or
the prior

toany
Equibrium Arhitects.

Do not scele from this draing.

are ste prior
manufacture of any components and ordering of materials and
equipment

Any discrepencies are fo be reported to the architect for carifcation.

All materials and workmanship to be in accordance with the current
Britsh Standards and codes of pracice.

This drawings to be readin corjuncion with allrelevant Architectural
Structural Engineers, Mechanical Engineers, Electical Engeers and
Specialsts drawings and specifications.

As with all constructon projects the COM 2015 regulations apply and
the work on this project may require both the issue of a notfication to
the HSE (because of the durationof the works on ste) and the client
may also ned to appoint a Principal Designer because there may be
more than one contractor working on sie.

The Principal Designer willbe 2ble {0 coorinate the pre-constuciion
information and also ensure that allduty hlders under CDM comply
withthei relevant dutes.

The buikling ovner s 10 serve @ Party Wall Act Notce as applicable

1o adoining property owners s outined in ThePerty Wall Act 1996
The Building Contactor s o verfy the tickness of the party walls prior
to commencement of he proposed works.

North West Elevation

South West Elevation

Key Plan

Scale 1:1000

South East Elevation

B UsdadSoumWet v
b oburs

CECAPIO

r

East Lancs Railway

ELR Buckley Wells Masterplan

T
Proposed Running Shed
South West, North East Elevations & Section B-B

£ oaTe R
1:200@A1 | Sept 2018 PB ‘

DRANGN. o . REMSION
C-0340-201 B

[orii

Y

Qi

435437 Wakmersly Road Bury Lan
nfo@equlbiumarchie

k. wonscqulbrumarchiact ok

rive BLOSEU T 0161797 2077 F: 0161 707 2088

North East Elevation



v o

(

) HI IH

- o

40 torre fed
overhezd gantry.

E—

j——

|
]
I 1
| |
[iE) ‘
I it} |
e — P — el S —— I — sTORES ||| CHANGING %}EH }
i ] I Jodf i |
e = N R A
= 1 1 ‘RU‘NNING‘E;H ) 1 1 1 | n “ | %}Eﬁ i
= | 1 | | | | 1 ‘ L |
. —— R —— — e = —_———T DRYING
e [ wspecvorpt || i p T ﬂ :li 'T SIGNIN || ROOM 7 srowers 1
) G——————— i e — PONT |ladanpN
S TTT1 11
| ICICICT
e 7 LAUNDRY
— | HEAVY MAINTENANCE SHOP,

WORKSHOPS AND STORES IN LEYR TIMBER HUTS

nal AV

=A

] I

LISTED

1657

MAIN

LOCO RESTORATION ¢ MAINTENANCE

WORKS

P2y

IEL

H

o1 o

Proposed Ground Floor Plan
Scale 1:200

Legen

@  Red Engineering Brickwork
Steel Build-up cladding system, colour TBC
New Steel Door on Rail Safety High Contrast Colour

Polycarbonate Trapezoidal Translucent Rooflight

Existing Ground Finish: Gravel &stene Sefls

New Ground Finish: Gravel

lisade Security Fence & Gate

Existing

xisting Building Restaurati
Interm cations, refer to Com

00 PO ©®

Rationalised External Storage Area
(Relocated Shipping Containers)

Zinc Standing Seam Cladding
Curtain Walling

Red Brickwork to Match Existing
Ventilation Louvre

Indicative Parking Layout (Unmarked)

Flareiadd
to Reveal the
Dark Grey Painted Steelwor

New Paladin Fence & Gate

Existing Electrical Switch Room to be Relocated

ing Panels with Clearly Espressed Panel Joints
setural Grid of the Building

EAST LANCASHIRE RAILWAY,

"

N

East Lancs Railway

This drawing i the propery of Equilbrium Archiects and copyrightis reserved
by them. This crawing i not o be copied or disclosed by or o any unauthorised
persons without the pror written consent of Equikbrium Architects.

Do not scale from tis drawing.

site prior

Any discrepencies are to be reported to the architect for clarification.
Allmeterials and workmanship fo be in accordance wih the current Biish
Standerds and codes of practice.
This drawing s fo be read in conjunction with all elevant Architectura,
Structural Engineers, Mechanical Engineers, Electical Engineers and
Specialsts drawings and specifications.
with projects the COM and the work
on this project may require both th issue of a noffication o the HSE (because
of the durationof the works on site) and the client may also need to appaint a
Principal Designer because there may be more than one contractor working on
ste. The Principal Designer willbe able o coornate the pre-consiruction
information and also ensure that alduty holders under COM comply with their
relevant dutes.
The buikding owner s 1o serve a Party Wall Act Notice as applicable to adiining
property owners as outined in TheParty Wall Act 1996. The Bulding Contactor
is o veriy the thickness of the party wallspror o commencement of the
proposed works.

ELR Buckley Wells Masterplan

RaG

Proposed Running Shed Ground Floor Plan

Es oaTe R
1:200@A1 ‘ ept 2018 PB ‘

DRANGN. 0 e REMSION
C-0340-200 D

[orii

Y

I

rive BLOSEU T 0161797 2077 F: 0161 707 2088
k. wonscqulbrumarchiact ok

435437 Wakmersly Road Bury Lan
nfo@equlbiumarchie




This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Bury East - Moorside ltem

Applicant: Sona Co-Living Ltd
Location: 206 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 6LL

Proposal: Change of use to 8-bedroom HMO (Sui Generis) and formation of front and rear
lightwells

Application Ref: 67867/Full Target Date: 27/01/2022
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The site relates to a three storey mid-terraced property on a row of similar styled properties.
The dwellinghouse was converted to a 6 no. house of multiple occupation (HMO) under
permitted development (Use Class C4).

The row fronts a main road and there is an alley (Back Albion Place) running along the
backs of these houses. Over the rear alley to the east are a row of two storey terraced
houses. Across Walmersley Road are mixed residential properties.

There is a large enclosed rear yard where bins would be stored and which provides some
outdoor amenity space.

The proposal involves:-

Basement - 2 no. bedrooms with en-suites

Ground floor - 1 no. bedroom with ensuite and a communal lounge, kitchen and dining
areas.

First floor - 3 no. bedrooms with en suites with a small communal office workspace.
Second floor - 2 no. bedrooms with en suites.

To accomodate bedrooms in the basement, the proposal also includes the formation of a
light wells to the front and rear.

The smallest bedroom would be 14.3sqgm with the largest measuring 24.3sgm. There would
be space for parking one car in the rear yard with a bike store and bin storage.

Relevant Planning History

47760 (204, 206 & 208 Walmersley Road) - Conversion into 12 one and two bedroom
apartments — approved 20/07/2007.

39210 (206 & 208 Walmersley Road) - Change of use from bed & breakfast to house in
multiple occupation to provide 16 bedrooms — approved 01/07/2002.

30670 - Single storey kitchen extension at rear — approved 07/03/1995.

28993 - Change of use from dwelling to residential guest house (Class C1) — approved
05/10/1993.

Publicity

Immediate neighbours notified by letter dated 20/12/2022. Four objections received from

nearby residents. Concerns summarised:

e This area is becoming more deprived and attracting landlords who want to maximise
profit over community. This property should remain a family home. The area is being
blighted by many HMO establishments that bring no quality to the area whatsoever.
Current properties of this type within walking distance are a disgrace to the eye. Unkept,
dirty, poor repair.

Page 61

03



e Concerns about noise
e problems with parking
e problems with scattered bins and rats and disease.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations

Traffic Section - No objections received. Any comments made will be reported in the
supplementary agenda.

Pre-start Conditions - N/A

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
H1/2 Further Housing Development
H2/4 Conversions

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict

SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

SPD13 Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act
2010 and associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due
regard for:

The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;

The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and person who do not share it;

The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected
equality groups.

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the
Human Rights Act 1998.

Under Atrticle 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations)
have the right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their
comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life
and a right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which
could include a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan

1997 and all material planning considerations, it is concluded on balance that the rights

conferred upon the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and

Article 1 of the First Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in

accordance with the law and is justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights

posed by refusal/ approval of the application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the
Page 62



wider benefits of such a decision, is based upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within
the margin of discretion afforded to the Council under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation
imposed on it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the
likely effect of the exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can
to prevent crime and disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions
under the Town and Country Planning Acts, the material Planning considerations shall have
due regard to the provisions of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the
exercise of its functions.

Principle - The property is currently a vacant dwellinghouse (Use Class C3) which would
have a 'permitted development fallback' to form a 6 person HMO, under current regulations.
The permitted development position together with the history of the site suggests that the
principle of a conversion to a HMO is acceptable.

The conversion of houses to HMO's can often make an important contribution to local
housing stock. However, it is recognised that such conversions can put pressures on the
amount of accommodation provided, put demands on parking and have an adverse effect
on residential amenity and the character of an area.

The main issues with this proposal are what impact the clear intensification of the residential
use of the premises would have in planning terms and in relation to the suitability of the site
and location, impacts on amenity, nature of the local environment, surrounding land uses
and highway issues.

Policy H2/4 - Conversions specifically has regard to effects on amenity of neighbouring
properties, general character of the area, amenity of occupants, effects from external
changes on the street scene and car parking and servicing requirements.

These issues are discussed in more detail below and in light of policies H1/2 and H2/4.

Visual amenity and Streetscape - The main external changes to the building would be the
formation of the lightwells at the front and rear. There would be the usual multi-doorbell
arrangment at the entrance but generally there would be no significant impact on the
character and appearance of the building or streetscape. The bins would be kept with the
rear yard area so should not cause particular concern. In terms of visual amenity, the
proposal is considered to be acceptable and complies with UDP Policy and guidance in
relation to HMOs.

Layout - In terms space standards, the applicant confirms that the proposed bedrooms
would exceed the minimum standards set out in HMO licensing standards and the
Nationally described Space Standards.

It is also stated that the communal areas in the form of a kitchen, lounge and dining areas
and study area would provide good internal communal space.

Whilst the property could convert to a 6 person HMO without permission, the revised
scheme which reduces the number of bedrooms from the 9 originally proposed, to 8. It is
considered that this would now not give rise to particular concerns regarding the size and
quality of communal living and recreation areas within the property. The proposed floor
plans show the proposed communal areas would now comprise a kitchen/diner/lounge
(32sgm), a front living room (16.4sgm) and a small work area only, to provide the kitchen,
lounge and dining area.

Externally, there would be little change to the existing arrangements and facilities. Suitable
bin storage would be located to the rear of the yard area, close to the rear doors. There
would be cycle store and a parking space provided. There would be sufficient space left for
drying clothes and incidental recreation/sitting out areas.

Page 63



On balance, the revised layout with 8 units would comply with Policies H1/2, H2/1, H2/2 and
H2/4.

Impact on residential amenity - In terms of the site and surroundings, the existing property
fronts onto a very busy road and has residential properties on either side, to the rear and
across the road to the front. A number of propoerties along Walmersley Road have been
converted into HMOs.

The existing property on 1st and 2nd floor levels has 6 bedrooms. This number would be
reduced to 5 and three additional units would be created on the ground floor and basement
areas. This proposed internal arrangement is unlikely to generate additional noise,
disturbance and activity to cause serious harm to neighbour amenity. In terms of residential
amenity, the proposal is acceptable and complies with UDP Policy and guidance relating to
HMO's.

Highway and parking - There is no specific car parking standards for HMO's in SPD11
Parking Standards in Bury. SPD 13 The Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple
Occupation gives some general advice.

It states that parking and road safety issues will be important considerations when
assessing a planning application and any proposal that is considered to have a detrimental
impact on highway safety or harm to amenity will not be permitted. Car parking provision
should meet the requirements of the likely occupants and, where possible, should be
provided off-street. HMQO's are best located in sustainable areas well served by public
transport and close to amenities, services and facilities, which can reduce the demand of
parking.

With regard to the site, there are parking restrictions along this part of Walmersley Road
with double yellow lines and a cycle way running in front of the property. At the rear, there
is an access which is wide enough for one car. The parking for properties in the vicinity is
mostly on-street with some off-street in rear yard areas.

There is limited parking for the HMO. Whilst it is generally recognised that car ownership
tends to be lower for those who occupy HMOs compared to other households, it is clear that
the proposed 8-bedroom HMO could have the potential to generate a greater demand for
car parking than either the existing family dwelling or a 6-bed HMO 'permitted' under the
current planning regulations . Whilst some residents of the HMO may not require access to
a car, there is no means to secure this and any cars associated with the use would have to
park within the yard or, if this is not available, on nearby streets alongside other residents in
the locality.

In terms of the sustainability of the location, the property is situated on a main road and bus
route into Bury Town Centre and as such could be considered 'sustainable’, situated about
700m' to the north of the town centre.

Given the location of the site in relation to the town centre together with the provision of one
parking space and secure cycle storage, it is considered that it would be difficult to sustain a
reason to refuse the proposal in traffic/parking grounds. The proposal would, on balance,
would be acceptable and comply with UDP policies H2/4, HT2/4 and SPD13 with regard to
HMOs.

Permitted Development - Under Permitted development' the Local Planning Authority
does not have any control over the use of the property as a 6-bed HMO. The critcal issue is
whether the two additional bedrooms would make a significantly material and detrimental
impact on residential amenity and highway safety. In view of the above it is considered that
the development is acceptable.

Response to objections
Page 64



Many of the points raised have been responded to within the main report. In relation to the
character and building, the building is in a good state of repair and presents itself
appropriately to the street. Any dilapidous building can be subject to Enforcement
processes.

Vermin is not a plannign concern.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to existing drawings numbered TQRQM21300094826253,
001, 002 rev B, 003, 004 and the development shall not be carried out except in
accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. The car parking and cycle storage indicated on the approved plans shall be
demarcated and made available for use prior to the first occupation of the
development.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking and cycle storage in the
interests of road safety pursuant to Policy H2/4 Conversions and SPD13
Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation.

4. The refuse storage facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be made
available for use prior to first occupation and shall thereafter remain available at all
times.

Reason - In order to ensue that the development would maintain adequate
facilities for the storage of domestic waste in the interests of amenity and pursuant
to the following Unitary Development Plan Policy H2/4 Conversions.

For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361

Page 65



Viewpoints

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 67867 / D ;
ADDRESS: 206 Walmersley Road /

Bury S COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 66



Page 67



67867

Photo 3

Page 68



Brickwork
chimney

L]

i /\\ State roof tites

Timber effect
UPVC casement
windows

Black UPVC rain

|
T
| -

water goods

—~————Rendered walls

| timber effect
UPVC entrance

door and side
screen

FRONT ELEVATION AS EXISTING

Brickwork
chimney

Existing slate

roof tiles

=

New metal
railings fo

|
i
!
|
i
i

| Existing fimber

1 effect UPVC
casement

i windows

L | exsingblack
T UPVC rain
| water goods
| Existing

rendered walls

perimeter of
lightwell

Exisfing fimber
effect UPVC

=

and side screen

F (I t U T t i
o
SCALE

|
i
i
!
i entrance door
I
|
I
i
[

Slate-roof tiles

|

i Black uPVC
|

te-— rain water
! goods

White uPVC

casement
windows

Rendered

walls

Brickwork plinth

i REAR ELEVATION AS EXISTING

Extsting slate
roof files

Bdisting

black uPVC
| rain water

goods

Existing white

UPVC casement
windows

Existing

Brickwork plinth

i REAR ELEVATION AS PROPOSED

rendered
walls

New metal
railings and
gate to
perimeter of
lightwell

Slateroof tiles

A

State-roof-files

Rendered walls

h

Black uPVC

rain water

B
=

White uPVC

casement
windows

SIDE ELEVATION AS EXISTING

Existing slafe

roof files
Existing state Existing
roof files rendered walls

Black UPVC
rain water

1\

goods

White uPVC

casement
windows

SIDE ELEVATION AS PROPOSED

Tim Spencer
Associates

Design and Project Management Consultants

12 Manley Close
Holmes Chapel

Cheshire CW4 7HL

Tel Fax: 01477 549 254

E-mail: admin@ timspencerassociates.co.uk

Preleet 206 Walmersley Road,
Bury, BLY 6LL

Description
EXTERNAL ELEVATIONS
AS EXISTING & PROPOSED

Scale:

Job no: TSA 0421 A3@1/100

Drugno: ()03 Dateig 17 o1 [Rev:

Drawing not to be scaled. Dimensions indicated must be
checked on site prior fo commencement of works. Any
discrepancies to be reported immediately.




0/ abed

BACK ALBION PLACE

T WP W

ENCLOSED
YARD

PC concrete
paving

AN AN

Lightwell

LAWN

WALMERSLEY ROAD

44 SITE / ROOF PLAN AS EXISTING
2 —

F I i i I i (R 1
o 2m am 6m am 1om
SCALE

BACK ALBION PLACE

:}\A/L':

1.8m high
rendered brick wall
) Parking
Bins space
o o
Exising PC C Raised
concrate paving — plonter

Timberclad cycle
store. 9no cycles
vertically stored by
Streetspace Group

1.8m high
rendered brick wall

Raised
planter

J Picnic bench

1.8m high
concrete panel
and timber fence

Raised planter

Lightwell

=EW ).
\\/ \\M/

208 206 204

J -
Lightwell
Existing lightwell

\_ enlarged with
stepped
planting bed

LAWN

WALMERSLEY ROAD

4& SITE / ROOF PLA“N‘AS‘ PRQPOSED

B e

1
2m am 6m 8m 10m

SCALE

Tim Spencer
Associates

Design and Project Management Consultants

12 Manley Close
Holmes Chapel

Cheshire CW4 7HL

Tel Fax: 01477 549 254

E-mail: admin@ timspencerassociates.co.uk

Preleet 206 Walmersley Road,
Bury, BLY 6LL

Description
SITE PLANS AS EXISTING &
PROPOSED
Jobno:  TSA 0421 | 5 A3@1/200
Drugnot ()04 Dateig 1107 | Rev .

Drawing not to be scaled. Dimensions indicated must be
checked on site prior fo commencement of works. Any
discrepancies to be reported immediately.




T/ abed

+2.300

uP
+1.650
up
+0.950
Escape window

BEDROOM 2

\(14.3m2)

N

— O

Q
—

=
= O

_/

BEDROOM 1
(16.6m2)

+—1500—%F

g Escape

UP,

+0.950

window
upP
TS0 Low level

LAUNDRY

C%}l

planting bed
in lightwell

L t+2.300

BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN AS PROPOSED

i
E
I
o Im 2m
St

]
|
T T T T 1
3m 4m S5m

e

17

v

\

LIVING AREA

—
AN
SN D
"
7

1

Cupboard

(32m?)

Y ==

D)
D)
D

2,
e

alala ) N

Lightwell
(Teraced)

KITCHEN / DINING

) BEDROOM 3
\(]S.sz)
Ql

_o@

\sromz ) we
G2

LIVING ROOM
(16.4m2)

CH3405

s
"NET
.

L

d D

G

I

I N Lightwell /]

I (Teraced)

| &TW/J |/
|

GROUND FLOOR PLAN AS PROPOSED

ENTRANCE

(RO
&

_

BEDROOM 6
(18.4m2)

SN
N .
i—
) J— =]
I-\(M-‘?m?)
= @ W 4 !
= F 1
1

/ BEDROOM 4

D\
D

(14.8m?)
COMMUNAL

OFFICE /
WORKSPACE

>

T s I e

:}JO o
[

FIRST FLOOR PLAN AS PROPOSED

BEDROOM 8
(15m?)

BEDROOM 7
(24.3m?)

AN

\\_\

Tt T T T T T T T T T

[N

[ \

RN
| |

L

B | Bedroom 3 replaced with Living and LJS|31.01.22

Store Room
A | Building Regs information added LJS|18.01.22
Rev | Description By |Date

SECOND FLOOR PLAN AS PROPOSED

Tim Spence
Associates

Design and Project Management Consultants

12 Manley Close

Holmes Chapel

Cheshire CW4 7HL

Tel Fax: 01477 549 254

E-mail: admin@timspencerassociates.co.uk

Project:

206 Walmersley Road,
Bury, BL? 6LL

Description:

PLANS AS PROPOSED

Scale:

Job no: TSA 0421 A3@1/100

Drwg no: 002 Date:S.] 1.21 Rev: B

Drawing not to be scakd. Dimensions indicated must be
checked on site priorto commencement of works. Any
discrepancies to be reported immediately.




This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - ltem
Ramsbottom

Applicant: Mr Arshad Khan

Location: 62 Bridge Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9AG

Proposal: Installation of refrigeration plant with pitched slate roof covering at rear
Application Ref: 67876/Full Target Date: 31/01/2022
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The application relates to a shop premises which is located in Ramsbottom Town Centre
and within the designated Ramsbottom Conservation Area. The premises are within a row
of other shops and commercial businesses in a mix of different uses, and form one of the
main shopping frontages in the town. Above the shops on this row are residential units,
storage/office areas or uses ancillary to the businesses.

Access to the rear of the premises is either via Smithy Street or a walkway which is located
between Nos 6 and 8 Silver Street. This access also serves the rear of the adjacent
commercial and residential properties.

The property itself is a stone mid-terraced with a single storey rear extension which serves
as a store room. There is an external yard area which provides bin store facilities and
access to the rear of the property.

Planning permission was granted in October 2020 for the change of use of the ground floor
from a cafe to hot food takeaway to include an extract flue and a staircase at the rear to
access the storage areas at the first floor.

Bins were to be kept in the rear yard area.

This application seeks the installation of refrigeration plant in the rear yard. These units
have already been installed in the yard of the property and have a profiled aluminium roof
covering.

The equipment would be 4.2m long, 1.9m in depth and 2.8m high and located on the side
wall next to the external staircase.

It is proposed to replace this roof with a pitched natural slate roof to match that of the
property and surrounding area.

There is also a compressor/condensor which has been mounted on the end of the plant
equipment. It is proposed to remove this and relocate it to the inside the back room of No
62.

In terms of bin storage, the previous operator of the business had a Euro bin which was too
large for the yard area and had been kept in the communal area at the back.

This application seeks to utilise smaller wheelie bins which could fit within the rear yard area
and therefore be fully contained within the site (as shown on the proposed layout plan).

Relevant Planning History

62200 - Prior approval for proposed change of use from shop (Class A1) to cafe (Class A3)
- Prior Approval Required and Granted 23/01/2018

65723 - Change of Use from cafe (Class A3) to hot food takeaway (Class A5), to include

Page 73

04



extract flue and staircase at the rear - Approve with Conditions 08/10/2020
66313 - 1no. non-illuminated fascia sign - Refused 04/02/2021

67877 - 1 No.non-illuminated fascia sign -

19/0046 - Change of use of first floor flat to business use - 01/04/2019
20/0368 - Breach of condition of planning permission 65723 -

21/0013 - llluminated neon sign to the rear of the front glazing -

Publicity
Letters sent on 21/12/21 to 19 properties on Square Street, Back Silver Street, Bridge
Street, Silver Street.

5 letters of objection received which raise the following issues:

e This refrigeration unit is already built and has been up for over a year now.
Retrospective planning permission should not be given under any circumstances.
Permission was given for the bins to be stored in the location where the fridges currently
are and therefore these fridges should be removed and waste containers kept within the
curtilage.

e Environmental nuisance and pest control issues have become serious and persistent
issues in the locality, as Bury council were warned about when permission was first
sought for the business to open. Should this be allowed to pass then the rest of the
residents and businesses in the area will have to put up with this nuisance.

e The last owners carried out this work without authorisation over a year ago. The new
owner has submitted this planning application. | strongly oppose this action as the
consequence of the work has meant that their bins are left in the outside communal
alley of which | enter my residence and have customers walking by to collect takeaway
orders from me, which aren't just unsightly but a breeding ground for vermin, as | was
told by Pest Control as they visited my property 3 times and Freddie's too.

e My business reputation is at stake as a consequence of their bins being poorly stored in
front of my entrance way. Please may this be not only taken into consideration, but
effectively managed and forcible removal of said metal cage with wet cardboard.

e |t has been noted that the original grant of planning has not been adhered to. ALL waste
was to be contained within the curtilage but in fact refrigeration units were illegally built
necessitating an industrial waste bin being situated on Back Square Street. Since then
my tenants have suffered a rat infestation and more recently a plague of flies. Back
Square Street serves a number of residential properties within the heart of The
Conservation Area with residents having to put up with the stench of rotting foodstuffs
and associated vermin infestation.

e App no. 65723 states regarding bin storage must be within curtilage "To ensure
adequate off-highway bin storage facilities are provided within the curtilage of the site.

e This, as previously stated, resulted in an infestation of rats to the detriment of residents
who use Back Square Street as their only means of access. The property remains in the
same ownership Land Registry Title GM837210 yet prospective tenants are used as
applicants for planning purposes.

e | fear the disrespect of your authority will continue and I, together with my tenants and
residents, must be assured that if the premises remain a food outlet that the strictest
measures be imposed on the occupiers! REFUSE

e The extension to the back would seem only to incur further stress to an obvious problem
with waste management. They have on numerous occasions attracted vermin near my
cellar and doorstep. The smell of rotten food and waste has left a sour tone to my
wellbeing. | have on countless occasions moved their bins which were always an
obstacle to my parking place.

e Residents can't open their windows because of the appalling smell of unkempt and
open overflowing and unemptied large commercial bin left out for weeks.

e Although it states the equipment was installed some time ago, it does not mention
whether it was actually used. If it was used by the previous occupier then | do not have
an objection as it has not caused any problem to me. If not used so far, it could cause
noise and vibration problems as it is very close to the wall of my home.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
Page 74



Conservation Officer - No objection
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - No objection.

Pre-start Conditions - Not relevant

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
EC4/1 Small Businesses

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN1/8 Shop Fronts

EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas
EN2/2 Conservation Area Control

EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution

EN7/2 Noise Pollution

S1/2 Shopping in Other Town Centres
S2/2 Prime Shopping Areas and Frontages
S2/6 Food and Drink

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Application - S73A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 makes provisions for
Planning permission to be considered for development already carried out.

Siting of equipment and impact on the surrounding area - The equipment has already
been installed within the yard area and has been positioned in the corner of the side walls
which are shared with No 2 and 4 Silver Street. It is noted that there are 2 small windows
in the side elevation which are blocked internally and as such there would be no issues from
overlooking or privacy.

The equipment would be sited in the corner of the yard between these shared walls and
there is a high boundary wall which runs along the rear boundary of the yard which would
significantly screen the majority of the equipment from external view, and as such the
equipment would not be highly visible from outside the site nor from other properties.

It is also proposed to replace the aluminium roof covering with a natural slate roof which
would be more appropriate visually to the surroundings as well as the Conservation Area. A
condition would be added that the roof be replaced within 3 months of the grant of
permission, to which the applicant is agreeable.

The compressor/condensor which is attached to the refrigeration unit is to be relocated
inside the back room of No 62.

The Pollution Control Section have been notified of the application and have raised no
objections to the type or siting of the refrigeration units.

It is therefore considered that there would not be a significantly detrimental impact on the
occupiers of the surrounding areas and would preserve the character of the Conservation
Area and as such would comply with Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, EN7/2 -
Noise Pollution and S2/6 - Food and Drink as well as discharging the duty imposed by virtue
of s72 of the TCP (LB & CA) Act 1990.

Page 75



Bin storage - In terms of bin storage, objectors have raised the issue that the waste Euro
bin which was being used for the business is kept in the communal area at the rear of the
premises causing issues of smells and attracting vermin.

It is understood that this bin has now been removed from the area and it is now proposed to
use smaller wheelie bins which can be accommodated and fully contained within the yard
area of the premises. This point is supported by the objections.

Regardless of what has happened in the past, this application shows the bins would be
stored within the yard are to be taken out to the communal area for collection purposes only.
This would be a condition of the application and any breach could result in potential
enforcement action by the LPA. It cannot be assumed that this operator would breach a
planning approval on the back of the behaviours of a previous occupier.

It can also not be assumed that the problems of vermin and waste smells are all, or even
part related to the business.

Action against issues of environmental nuisances can also be taken under the
Environmental Health Protection Act, a separate legislation under which the Pollution
Control would have powers to act and prosecute on such matters. It is through Enforcement
processes that have led to this application being considered.

Conservation Area- The application site is within Ramsbottom Conservation Area. It is
not listed or considered to be a Non-Designated Heritage Asset.

Section 72 of The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires
local planning authorities to give special attention to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.

Paragraph 194 states that in determining applications, LPA's should require an applicant to
describe the significance of any heritage assets affected, including any contribution to their
setting. The level of detail should be proportionate to the asset's importance and no more
than is sufficient to understand the potential impact of the proposal on their significance.

EN2/1 - Character of Conservation Areas and EN2/2 - Conservation Area Control policies
only support proposals where it can be demonstrated that development would preserve or
enhance the special character of the area. In the case of re-use of buildings or the
introduction of new uses, the impact of the proposal on the character or appearance of the
area and the fabric of the building will be considered.

The proposal would not be visible in the street scene and would not be visible from wider
views within the conservation area. As such the impact of the proposal on the conservation
area is considered to be neutral and therefore would preserve the character and
appearance of the conservation area.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would comply with the principles of
the NPPF and UDP Policies EN2/1 and EN2/2.

Response to objectors

e There is adequate space in the rear yard to accommodate both the refrigeration units
and bins for the business, as shown on proposed plan PM7-02D.

e |t cannot be assumed that all matters relating to the environmental nuisances have
arisen from the application premises.

e A condition to control the storage of bins would be included in the grant of a permission.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

Page 76



The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date
of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings - As-built plans and elevations PM7-02C;
Proposed plans and elevations PM7-02D and the development shall not be carried
out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. The bin storage facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be provided before
the use hereby approved commences and shall subsequently be maintained
available for use at all times.

Reason. To ensure adequate off-highway bin storage facilities are provided
within the curtilage of the site, in the interests of road safety and to safeguard the
amenity of adjacent occupires pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies
EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and S2/6 - Food and Drink.

4. Within 3 months of the grant of this permission, the roof of the refrigeration units
hereby approved shall be removed and replaced with a natural slate roof and
thereafter maintained as such whilst it serves the premises.

Reason. In the interests of visual amenity pursuantto EN1/2 - Townscape and
Built Design, EN2/1 - Character of Conservation Areas and EN2/2 - Conservation
Area Control of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and principles of the NPPF.

For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161
253-5320

Page 77



Car Park

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN
N

APP. NO 67876 ‘ D ;
ADDRESS: 62 Bridge Street /

Ramsbottom S COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 78




67876
Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 79



67876

Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 80



)

Iy
I\

A

[

\

62 Bridge Street

Ramsbottom scale 1:500 at A4
BLO 9AG June 2020
PM7'03 Block Plan

PPY design Ltd

Page 81



|
I
I
| Store
|

Z8 abed

Store

| Qe mh

Extroct.

fiue at
high level

Natural siate

Refrigeration”
Store 1

Profiled_aluminium
Toof covering

Euro

Bin [

Natural siate

Refrigeration
Store 2

As~built Plan As~built Plan
Ground Floor First Floor

Noturd_siote

T

Stoinless steel fiue
4(—)—mm Black
\
S

Coursed

Metal framed stair
Colour black

722
72

Refrigeration
Store hotched

As~built Rear Elevation

Natural siote

[ ]
|:| S
-

I

As~built Front Elevation

Natural siate

c

Metal framed stair
Colour black Coursed
stone

Profiled aluminium
roof covering

®

As~built Side Elevation

Rear stair amended as-built
Refrigeration as installed with canopy ~ 02.11.2020
Extract flue internal 14,09.2020
Side elevation added with stair

Bins Indicated / flue reduced in helght  20.08.2020

This drawing and desian concept. is the
property of PPY desian, It shald not

be reproduced without written permission
0 1 2 3 m
62 Bridge Street scale 1:50 @ A1
Ramsbottom June 2020
BLO 9AG

As~built Plans & Elevations

PM7-02C

PPY design Ltd

2 Helmshore Road, Hdcombe */llage
Ramsbottom, Lancashire PLE 4PA

Gary Dearden PAChans) Diphreh RIPA
o g




€8 afied

Extroct.

fiue at
high level

—) B

Refrigeration”
Store 1

Refrigeration Unit
relocated to Inside

[

Refrigeration
Store 2

240 litre wheelie bins 1o be stored in the yord and

r-
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

moved into the back street on collection days only }

Proposed Plan
Ground Floor

Store

Natural siate

Store
| Qe mh
I |
|
{ w |
o I

A

Proposed Plan
First Floor

Noturd_siote

T

Stoinless steel flue

pointed black

\

S

Coursed

Metal fromed stair
Colour black

7| New root covering

natural grey slote

Refrigeration
Store hotched

Proposed Rear Elevation

using

Natural siote

[ ]
|:| S
-

__
Proposed Front Elevation

\

Natural siate

Metal framed stair
Colour black

Coursed
stone

Nofurol slote ool

Proposed Side Elevation

o

Slate roof added over refrigeration
Rear stair amended as-built
Refrigeration as installed with canopy ~ 02.11.2020
Extract flue internal 14,09.2020
Side elevation added with stair

Bins Indicated / flue reduced in helght  20.08.2020

18.11.2021

o

>®

This drawing and desian concept. is the
property of PPY desian, It shald not
be reproduced witheut wr permission

0 1 2 3 m

62 Bridge Street

scale 1:50 @ AL

Ramsbottom June 2020
BLO 9AG

Proposed Plans & Elevations
PM7-02D

PPY design Ltd

2 Helmshore Road, Hdcombe */llage
Ramsbottom, Lancashire PLE 4PA

Gary Dearden PAChans) Diphreh RIPA

L)




This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT FOR NOTING

Agenda It(@@[ﬁy

COUNCIL

Agenda
Item 5

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

22 February 2022

SUBJECT:

DELEGATED DECISIONS

REPORT FROM:

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

CONTACT OFFICER:

DAVID MARNO

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: The report lists:

Recent delegated planning decisions since the last PCC
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy

Do the proposals accord with the Policy

Framework: Framework? Yes
Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk Executive Director of Resources to advise

Considerations:

regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A

of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No

Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A

Wards Affected:

All listed

Scrutiny Interest:

N/A
FPage 85




TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/ Executive Ward Members Partners
Strategic Leadership Member/Chair
Team
Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is a monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning
decisions made by the officers of the Council.

2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-None

Contact Details:-

David Marno, Head of Development Management

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation
3 Knowsley Place

Bury BL9 OEJ]

Tel: 0161 253 5291
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk

Page 86




Planning applications decided using Delegated Powers B
Between 17/01/2022 and 13/02/2022 “"’D E

Ward: Bury East

Application No.: 67713 App- Type: FUL 28/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 62 East Street, Bury, BL9 ORX
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension
Application No.: 67726 App. Type: ADV 18/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 3 St Johns Square, Bury, BL9 0JL
Location:
Proposal:  Fascia signs: 2 No. sets of built up internally illuminated LED letters (adverts 1-2), 4 no.
internally illuminated flex faces onto existing frames (advert 3- 6), 1 no. internally illuminated
flex face (advert 7);
Other signs: 3 No. digital printed vinyl graphics (adverts 1-3), 1 no. dibond panel onto internal
bulkhead (advert 4), 2 no. digital printed vinyl graphics (adverts 5-6)
Application No.: 67766 App. Type: ADV 27/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. Unit A, Block A, Clerke Street, Bury, BL9 OPN
Location:
Proposal: 3 no. non illuminated fascia signs; 1 no. internally illuminated projecting sign; 1 no. Externally

illuminated projecting sign

Ward: Bury East - Moorside

Application No.: 67596 App.- Type: FUL 26/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. Fernhill Caravan Site, Every Street, Bury, BL9 5BE
Location:
Proposal:  Demolition of 17 no. existing Gypsy and Traveller pitches, amenity blocks and management
blocks for the proposed redevelopment of the site to provide 12 no. permanent Gypsy and
Traveller pitches including new amenity buildings and management block.
Application No.: 67685 App. Type: FUL 03/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 296 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 6NH
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension at side/rear
Application No.: 67845 App. Type: FUL 04/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
Location: 5 Topping Street, Bury, BL9 6DR
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension
Application No.: 67849 App. Type: FUL 24/01/2022 Refused
L Lo Salisbury Conservative Club, Badger Street, Bury, BL9 6AD
ocation:
Proposal: Change of use from club to sweets manufacturing unit (Class B2) with extraction flue to side

elevation

Ward: Bury East - Redvales

Page 87
Page 1 of 11 14/02/2022



Application No.: 67554 App. Type: FUL 31/01/2022 Refused
73 Brierley Street, Bury, BL9 9HW

Location:

Proposal: Change of use from dwelling (Class C3) to residential institution (Class C2) for proposed
children's care home (for up to 4 children with a minimum of 2 full time carers overnight, 1
sleeping, 3 full time carers during the day and living together as a single household)

Application No.: 67705 App. Type: FUL 19/01/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 3 Parkhills Close, Bury, BL9 9HB

Location:

Proposal: Two storey rear/front extension; First floor rear extension; Single storey front extension

Application No.: 67767 App. Type: FUL 18/01/2022 Approve with Conditions

Location: 588 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9SU

Proposal: Two storey side/rear extension; Loft conversion; Raise roof ridge height; Front entrance porch

Application No.: 67805 App. Type: FUL 25/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 126 Parkhills Road, Bury, BL9 9AW

Location:

Proposal: Two storey front extension and two storey rear extension/single storey side extension

Application No.: 67879 App. Type: GPDE 18/01/2022 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension
. 51 Grasmere Drive, Bury, BL9 9GB

Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

Application No.: 67892 App. Type: GPDE 18/01/2022 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension
. 40 Wellington Road, Bury, BL9 9BG

Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

Ward: Bury West - Church

Application No.: 67779 App. Type: FUL 18/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 36 Harwood Drive, Bury, BL8 2ED
Location:
Proposal: Two storey side extension with rear dormer
Application No.: 67786 App. Type: FUL 19/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 15 Lyons Drive, Bury, BL8 2EA
Location:
Proposal: Two storey extension at side/rear wth front dormer and rear juliette balcony, single storey rear
extension, alterations to existing rear dormer roof and new first floor window at rear
Application No.: 67819 App. Type: FUL 19/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 131 Newbold Street, Bury, BL8 2RL
Location:
Proposal: Replace existing conservatory with single storey rear extension; New entrance porch to side
Application No.: 67885 App.- Type: FUL 03/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 67 Greenhill Road, Bury, BL8 2LL
Location:
Proposal: First floor side extension with side window; Front porch

Page 88
Page 2 of 11 14/02/2022



Ward: Bury West - Elton

Application No.: 67315 App. Type: FUL 18/01/2022 Approve with Conditions

. Land at Green Street, Tottington, BL8 1TF
Location:

Proposal:  Variation of condition 2 following approval of planning permission 65293- Insertion of a window
on the front elevation of the pair of semi detached dwellings; Single storey side extension to
the detached dwelling

Application No.: 67689 App.- Type: FUL 31/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
- 5 Trimingham Drive, Bury, BL8 1HA
Location:
Proposal: Two/single storey extension at front, first floor extensions at rear with juliet balconies and
external alterations
Application No.: 67701 App. Type: FUL 17/01/2022 Refused
. The Gatehouse, Woodhill Road, Bury, BL8 1BN
Location:
Proposal: Two storey extension at front, side and rear with balcony at front/side: Increase in height of
roof
Application No.: 67769 App. Type: FUL 25/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 12 Jesmond Drive, Bury, BL8 1EE
Location:
Proposal: Demolition of side garage; Single storey rear extension; Two storey side extension; Front
porch
Application No.: 67802 App. Type: FUL 19/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
Location: 1 Springside View, Bury, BL8 4LU
Proposal: Single storey rear extension; Detached annexe extension at rear; Greenhouse at rear; Level
alterations to the existing paths to provide suitable access
Application No.: 67878 App. Type: FUL 01/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
Location: 29 Woodhill Fold, Bury, BL8 1UY

Proposal: 1.8m fencing to the side/rear

Ward: North Manor

Application No.: 67743 App. Type: FUL 18/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. Burrs View, Touch Road, Bury, BL9 5QS

Location:

Proposal:  External alterations to existing building consisting of insertion of a door and windows

Application No.: 67815 App. Type: FUL 17/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 7 Brookside Crescent, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4BG

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at side/rear with juliet balcony to rear

Application No.: 67841 App.- Type: FUL 25/01/2022 Approve with Conditions

L . 25 Shepherds Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4BL

ocation:
Proposal:  Single storey extension at side and rear

Page 89
Page 3 of 11 14/02/2022



Application No.: 67843 App. Type: FUL 27/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
87 Mount Pleasant, Nangreaves, Bury, BL9 6SP

Location:

Proposal:  Replacement of hard wood front door and side window to rosewood Upvc

Application No.: 67870 App. Type: AG 27/01/2022 Prior Approval Required and Granted

. Touch Road Farmhouse, Touch Road, Bury, BL9 5QS

Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed agricultural building

Application No.: 67871 App. Type: TEL 27/01/2022 Prior Approval Required and Granted

. Land at junction of Walmersley Road & Mather Road, Bury, BL9 5]JA

Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed telecomminications installation comprising of a base station
consisting of a 20m monopole supporting 3 no antenna, 2 no 300mm dishes, 2 no cabinets
with ancillary development thereto

Application No.: 67899 App.- Type: GPDE 18/01/2022 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension

. 144 Bolton Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4JA

Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

Application No.: 67907 App. Type: ADV 10/02/2022 Approve with Conditions

. Hamers Arms, Higher Summerseat, Summerseat, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9UG
Location:
Proposal: Installation of 1no.externally illuminated projection sign; 2no. externally illuminated sets of

gold leaf individual letters; 2no. non-illuminated poster cases; 1no. externally illuminated brass
menu case; and associated lighting.

Ward: Prestwich - Holyrood

Application No.: 67635 App. Type: FUL 17/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 11 Farm Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2RX

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side extension; Two/single storey rear extension

Application No.: 67672 App. Type: FUL 01/02/2022 Refused
. 55 Milton Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1PT

Location:

Proposal: Replacement of garage with new single storey garage building

Application No.: 67710 App. Type: FUL 03/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 4 Mardale Close, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2RG

Location:

Proposal: Single storey front/rear/side extension; External works to the front elevation.

Application No.: 67732 App. Type: FUL 20/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 8 Droughts Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2ST

Location:

Proposal: Two storey and single storey rear extension

Page 90
Page 4 of 11 14/02/2022



Application No.: 67788 App. Type: FUL 31/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
26 St Josephs Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6NT

Location:
Proposal: Two storey front and rear extension; Changes to the front elevation/windows and doors and
gable end to both sides of roof
Application No.: 67803 App. Type: FUL 07/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 14 Sunningdale Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1JX
Location:
Proposal:  Two storey front extension
Application No.: 67860 App. Type: LDCP 25/01/2022 Lawful Development
. 3 Droughts Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2ST
Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey side extension
Application No.: 67874 App.- Type: LDCP 28/01/2022 Lawful Development
. 26 Newlands Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3BU
Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey extension at rear

Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley

Application No.: 67631 App. Type: FUL 31/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 31 Meade Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 ODH

Location:

Proposal: First floor side extension; Loft conversion with front/rear dormers; Raising ridge height

Application No.: 67657 App- Type: FUL 24/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 28 George Street, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9WS

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension; Front porch extension

Application No.: 67733 App. Type: FUL 18/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 152 Downham Crescent, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0BS

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side extension

Application No.: 67748 App. Type: FUL 24/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 20 Bland Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9WL

Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension with raised steps and balustrade

Application No.: 67806 App. Type: FUL 31/01/2022 Refused
. 4 Westleigh Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OEN

Location:

Proposal: New boundary gate and fence to front elevation

Application No.: 67837 App. Type: FUL 31/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 38 Edenfield Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OEE

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey/first floor front extension; Two storey side/rear extension; Raised decking at rear

Page 91
Page 5 of 11 14/02/2022



Application No.: 67840 App. Type: FUL 04/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
47 Bury OIld Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFG

Location:
Proposal: Change of use from retail (Class E) to hot food takeaway (Sui Generis)
Application No.: 67889 App. Type: FUL 08/02/2022 Refused
. 6 Wilton Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OHD
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension; first floor balcony at rear and addition of ground floor window to
left hand side elevation
Application No.: 67896 App. Type: FUL 03/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 81 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFG
Location:
Proposal: Single storey front, side and rear extension
Application No.: 67903 App. Type: FUL 04/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 50 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OER
Location:
Proposal:  Retrospective - Loft conversion with rear dormer
Application No.: 67904 App.- Type: LDCP 07/02/2022 Lawful Development
. 5 Egerton Street, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1FS
Location:
Proposal:  Lawful development certificate for proposed loft conversion including rear facing dormer

Ward: Prestwich - St Mary's

Application No.: 66769 App- Type: FUL 04/02/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 1 Prestwich Park Road South, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9PF
Location:

Proposal: Proposed roof extension to existing bungalow to form two storey dwelling; Front porch
extension

Application No.: 67709 App- Type: FUL 20/01/2022 Refused

. 424 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1BD
Location:

Proposal: Change to opening hours from 09:00-23:00 to 09:00-01:30; Repositioning of kitchen extractor

Application No.: 67768 App- Type: FUL 18/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 45 Hilton Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9SA
Location:
Proposal: Two storey rear/side extension with gable end; Glazed rear balcony; Rebuild of front walls and
1.1m glazed barrier to parking level
Application No.: 67780 App- Type: FUL 19/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 36 Agecroft Road East, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RT
Location:
Proposal: Two storey extension at side/rear; Raised patio with glass balustrade and steps to garden level
at rear; New front porch
Application No.: 67801 App. Type: FUL 18/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 120 St Anns Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9G]
Location:
Proposal: Demolition of existing single storey rear outrigger and side garage and erection of single storey

extension at rear and part single storey / part two storey extension at side; increased height
fence panel to provide a screen from the neighbouring property

Page 92
Page 6 of 11 14/02/2022



Application No.: 67824 App. Type: FUL 01/02/2022 Refused
27 Rainsough Brow, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9XW

Location:

Proposal: Two/single storey extension at side/rear with juliet balcony and basement level extension at
rear; Raise roof ridge height/roof extension with loft conversion and rear dormer; Erection of
outbuilding at rear; Alterations to parking and new boundary fence at side/rear

Application No.: 67884 App. Type: TEL 27/01/2022 Prior Approval Required and Refused

Location: Land at Butterstile playing fields (between 57-63 Venwood Road & 206-210 Butterstile Lane),

Venwood Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9UH

Proposal:  Prior approval for telecommunications installation comprising of a 20 metre Phosco Monopole
with 6no Antennas; 1no GPS module, 2no Transmission Dishes and 18no. Remote Radio Units
(RRUs); 1no. meter cabinet, 3no. equipment cabinets at the base and ancillary development
including 2m high palisade fencing

Application No.: 67891 App. Type: FUL 03/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 38 Duckworth Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9QH
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension; Dormer loft conversion; Rear raised decking with railings and
steps into garden
Application No.: 67932 App. Type: FUL 04/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. Former Viridor Waste, Buckley Lane, Prestwich
Location:
Proposal:  Variation of condition 2 following approval of planning permission 64977- Replacement of

drawing R-0544-05/G with drawings R-0544-05/K and R-0544-70 to include installation of an
electrical substation transformer within the planning approval

Ward: Radcliffe - East

Application No.: 67684 App- Type: FUL 21/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 45 Church Street West, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2SP
Location:
Proposal: Change of use of vacant nightclub (Sui Generis) to a licenced pizza restaurant (Class E), and
associated external alterations including installation of a flue to the rear elevation.
Application No.: 67690 App- Type: FUL 19/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 35 Bankside Avenue, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2QH
Location:
Proposal:  Raise roof ridge height with loft conversion, rear dormer and two pediment windows to front
Application No.: 67883 App. Type: FUL 31/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 1 Parkside Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2QS
Location:
Proposal: Two storey side extension

Ward: Radcliffe - North

Application No.: 67771 App- Type: FUL 28/01/2022 Refused

. Land to the rear of 55 Bradley Fold Road, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 5QR
Location:
Proposal: Proposed widening of access and construction of new stable block and menage

Page 93
Page 7 of 11 14/02/2022



Application No.: 67857 App. Type: FUL 01/02/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 25 Burghley Drive, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3XY
Location:

Proposal:  Replace existing conservatory with two storey rear extension and new first floor window to side
elevation

Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington

Application No.: 67730 App. Type: FUL 20/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 145 Turton Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3QA
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey detached outbuilding
Application No.: 67742 App- Type: FUL 27/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 322 Turton Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3QG
Location:
Proposal: First floor extension at front with alterations to existing front porch and two storey extension at
rear with juliette balcony; Construction of new steps and raised landing to front garden
Application No.: 67770 App. Type: FUL 25/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 39 Moorside Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3HP
Location:
Proposal: Two storey front/side extension; Rear dormer; First floor side window
Application No.: 67820 App. Type: FUL 31/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 27 Cotswold Crescent, Bury, BL8 1QF
Location:
Proposal: Two storey side extension with extension of existing front and rear dormers; Single storey rear
extension; Alterations to parking area at front
Application No.: 67834 App. Type: FUL 01/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 256 Turton Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4A]
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension and garage conversion
Application No.: 67928 App. Type: GPDE 04/02/2022 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension
. 259 Walshaw Road, Bury, BL8 1PJ]
Location:
Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - Ramsbottom

Application No.: 67642 App.- Type: FUL 27/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 48 Woodhey Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9RB
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension with bi - folding doors; First floor extension with balustrade
balcony
Application No.: 67666 App. Type: FUL 17/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 29 Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9HU
Location:
Proposal:  Alterations to front elevation of property consiting of splitting the window into 3 no. panels

Page 94
Page 8 of 11 14/02/2022



Application No.: 67667 App. Type: ADV 17/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
29 Bolton Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9HU

Location:

Proposal:  Advertisement consent for 1 no. fixed fascia sign

Application No.: 67715 App. Type: FUL 11/02/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 52 Tanners Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9ES

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension

Application No.: 67718 App.- Type: OUT 01/02/2022 Approve with Conditions

. Land adjacent 5 Stubbins Lane, Ramsbottom, BLO OPU

Location:

Proposal:  Outline application for 1 No. dwelling with all matters reserved

Application No.: 67737 App- Type: FUL 31/01/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 31 Lansdowne Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO SWE

Location:

Proposal: First floor balcony at rear

Application No.: 67818 App. Type: FUL 31/01/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 15 Palmerston Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9YN

Location:

Proposal:  Part two/part single storey extension at front/side

Application No.: 67833 App. Type: FUL 31/01/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 10 Heapworth Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9EH

Location:

Proposal:  Variation of condition no.2 (approved plans) of planning permission 67181 (two storey rear
extension, loft conversion including roof extension and rear dormer, new window to side
elevation and new rear garden wall):

Change of material to first floor extension to timber cladding: Addition of roof light to proposed
north east elevation

Application No.: 67842 App. Type: FUL 01/02/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 6 Bramworth Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9EJ

Location:

Proposal:  Two storey front/side extension

Application No.: 67861 App. Type: FUL 03/02/2022 Approve with Conditions

. Dawes Bank Farm, Holcombe Old Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4NQ

Location:

Proposal: Porch extension to south elevation; Velux rooflights in existing roof; New gate to entrance to
replace existing; Fence to replace existing low level fencing; Erection of garden room and
summer house at rear

Application No.: 67908 App. Type: LDCP 07/02/2022 Lawful Development

. 31 Callender Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9DX
Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed loft conversion to include new rooflights; internal

alterations creating one new bedroom, to include a new window on the front elevation.

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses

Page 95
Page 9 of 11 14/02/2022



Application No.: 67662 App. Type: LDCP  02/02/2022 Lawful Development
2-3 Albert Place, Whitefield, M45 8NE

Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed change of use of building from pharmacy Class
E(a) to cafe Class E(b)
Application No.: 67825 App. Type: FUL 28/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 19 Rivermead Way, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8SF
Location:
Proposal: Single storey extension at side/rear

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park

Application No.: 67668 App- Type: FUL 18/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 26 Middleton Drive, Bury, BL9 8DS
Location:
Proposal: 1.8m Fencing with concrete base and posts to the side/rear
Application No.: 67679 App- Type: FUL 28/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 11 Well Grove, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 75Q
Location:
Proposal: Single storey rear and side extension; Loft conversion with rear dormer extension; Front porch
extension
Application No.: 67817 App. Type: FUL 11/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 149 Park Lane, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7DZ
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey side extension
Application No.: 67847 App. Type: FUL 01/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 17 Kibworth Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LS
Location:
Proposal: Two storey extension at front/side, first floor side extension, single storey front extension,

single storey rear extension and alterations to existing windows/doors

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth

Application No.: 67600 App. Type: FUL 09/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 214 Parr Lane, Bury, BL9 8]S

Location:

Proposal: Dormer extension at rear; Juliet balcony at rear

Application No.: 67757 App. Type: FUL 24/01/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 13 Apollo Avenue, Bury, BL9 8HG

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side extension; Two storey/single storey rear extension

Application No.: 67785 App. Type: FUL 04/02/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 117 Rufford Drive, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8PD

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side extension and first floor extension at rear

Page 96
Page 10 of 14/02/2022



Total Number of Applications Decided: 90

Page 97
Page 11 of 14/02/2022



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT FOR NOTING

Agenda Itpﬂéf}@][ﬁy

COUNCIL

Agenda
Item 6

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

22 February 2022

SUBJECT:

PLANNING APPEALS

REPORT FROM:

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

CONTACT OFFICER:

DAVID MARNO

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: Planning Appeals:

- Lodged

- Determined

Enforcement Appeals

- Lodged

- Determined
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy

Do the proposals accord with the Policy

Framework: Framework? Yes
Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk Executive Director of Resources to advise

Considerations:

regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A

of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No

Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A

fPage 99




Wards Affected: All listed
Scrutiny Interest: N/A
TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership
Team

Executive

Member/Chair

Ward Members

Partners

Scrutiny Committee

Committee

Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is a monthly report to the Committee of the Planning Appeals lodged against
decisions of the authority and against Enforcement Notices served and those that
have been subsequently determined by the Planning Inspectorate.

Attached to the report are the Inspectors Decisions and a verbal report will be
presented to the Committee on the implications of the decisions on the Appeals that

were upheld.
2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-

Contact Details:-

David Marno, Head of Development Management
Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation,

3 Knowsley Place ,Bury
Tel: 0161 253 5291

BLO OEJ]

Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk

Page 100




Planning Appeals Lodged WW

between 17/01/2022 and 13/02/2022 L

Application No.: 67665/FUL Appeal lodged: 10/02/2022
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type:
Recommended Decision: Split Decision

Applicant: Mr Zaffer Hussein
Location 3 Bridgefield Drive, Bury, BL9 7PE

A: Single storey rear/side extension

Proposal
B: First floor front extension

"Total Number of Appeals Lodged: 1

Page 101



Planning Appeals Decided
between 17/01/2022 and 13/02/2022 Mﬁ?j

CoOuUNGCI

Application No.: 66990/FUL Appeal Decision: Dismissed
Decision level: DEL Date: 20/01/2022

Applicant: Richard Roberts
Location: 1 Dover Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4EE

Proposal: A: Conversion of garage roof to pitched; Addition of door to side elevation and
sliding doors to rear elevation; Relocation of the entrance door to front elevation
B: Roof extension to existing front dormer

Page 102



g The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 18 January 2022
by K A Taylor MSC URP MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State

Decision date: 20 January 2022

Appeal Ref: APP/T4210/D/21/3281936

1 Dover Close, Tottington BL8 4EE

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Richard Roberts against the decision of Bury Metropolitan
Borough Council.

e The application Ref 66990, dated 10 May 2021, was refused by notice dated
19 July 2021.

e The development proposed was originally described as ‘1st Floor pitched roof extension
to the front dormer, the addition of 2 No. En-suites at 1st floor level, the garage roof
converted to a pitched roof, relocation of the entrance door to the front elevation, and
modifications to the rear and side elevations at ground floor level’.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Procedural Matters

2. The description of development in the heading above has been taken from the
planning application form. In Part E of the appeal form it is stated that the
description of development has not changed but, nevertheless, the Council
changed the wording on the decision letter forming a split decision. Neither of
the main parties has provided written confirmation that a revised description of
development has been agreed. Accordingly, I have used the one given on the
original application.

3. The Council issued a split decision granting planning permission for Proposal A,
‘conversion of garage roof to pitched,; Addition of door to side elevation and
sliding doors to rear elevation; Relocation of the entrance door to front
elevation” and refused the application in respect of Proposal B, ‘Roof extension
to existing front dormer’. I am satisfied from the evidence, that the Council do
not find Proposal A, to be unacceptable. My deliberations and decision are
therefore focused solely upon Proposal B, roof extension to the front dormer.

Main Issues

4. The main issues are (i) the effect of the proposed pitched roof extension to the
front dormer on the character and appearance of the host property and the
surrounding area; and (ii) the effect of the proposed pitched roof extension to
the front dormer on the living conditions of the occupants of No.43 Vernon
Road (No.43), with particular reference to light and outlook.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 103



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/D/21/3281936

Reasons

Character and Appearance

5.

The appeal site is within a predominantly residential area mainly characterised
by both detached and semi-detached bungalows. The property forms a pair of
semi-detached dormer bungalows of similar appearance and characterised with
identical features including front flat roof dormers. The property is positioned at
the start of a cul-de-sac and directly opposite are an identical pair of dormer
bungalows, whilst the rest of the Close are detached bungalows with single
storey protruding front gables. Despite some variation in form, the properties
in the area present a discreet arrangement that appreciably contributes
towards the local character.

The proposed pitched roof extension to the front dormer would result in almost
half of the original flat roof dormer having a large pitched roof and significantly
protruding out onto the roof slope. Therefore, it would result in a poor miss-
match of design to the front elevation and relationship to the existing form of
the flat roof dormer. Despite, the footprint of the property not being increased,
given the resultant excessive height, width and depth of the proposed dormer
it would result in an unbalanced, bulky and dominant addition in relation to the
existing front elevation and roof slope.

Furthermore, the proposed materials would be unsympathetic as the white
cladding would be excessive on the proposed dormer. When this is combined
with its overall scale, width, minimal setback and excessive depth across the
host property it would appear incongruous and have a negative appearance.
Accordingly, it would detract from the character and appearance of the host
property and the street scene.

For the reasons given above, I conclude that the proposed pitched roof
extension to the front dormer would cause significant harm to the character
and appearance of the host property and surrounding area. It would conflict
with Saved Policy H2/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan, 1997, Saved by
way of direction 2007, which has regard to the size, shape, design and external
appearance of the proposal and the character of the property in question and
the surrounding area.

I also find it would be at odds with the guidance in the Supplementary Planning
Document 6 Alterations and Extensions to Residential Properties, 2010 (SPD6),
which requires domestic extensions and alterations to achieve high standards,
and seeks to ensure that proposals for dormer/roof extensions preserve the
character of the street scene.

Living Conditions

10. No.43 is a detached single storey bungalow and positioned to the side of the

appeal site. The rear elevation of No.43 directly faces onto the appeal property
and contains a number of openings to habitable rooms. The proposed pitched
roof extension to the dormer would result in only a short separation distance
between the rear and those windows on No.46. Despite, the appellant advising
windows would be frosted to reduce outlook/privacy into the neighbouring
property. The dormer extension would not meet the guidance contained in
SPD6, which requires extensions to maintain a minimum separation distance of
13m.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1042



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/D/21/3281936

11. Therefore, when viewed from the rear windows, in particular the bedroom
window of No.43 the extended dormer would appear rather stark, excessive in
size and overbearing. It would be viewed as a two-storey side addition when
looking up from both the windows and when stood in the rear garden area of
No.43. All to the detriment of the existing living conditions and outlook of
No.43.

12. Given the position of existing windows and that the proposed dormer is sited
on the roof slope, it would be unlikely that there would be any loss of light to
the bedroom window to an unacceptable degree. However, this does not
outweigh the harm I have found in regard to outlook.

13. For the reasons given above, I conclude that the proposed pitched roof
extension to the front dormer would cause harm to the living conditions of the
occupiers of No.43, with particular reference to outlook. It would conflict with
Saved Policy H2/3 of the UDP, which has regard to the consideration of
amenity of adjacent properties. It would also be in conflict with the guidance
contained within SPD6, in regard to aspect standards to protect privacy and
residential amenity.

Other Matters

14. I acknowledge that the Council issued a split decision for ‘Proposal A" and
‘Proposal B’. Whilst I have the power to issue a split decision on an appeal, this
is discretionary, and I am not obliged to do so. I do not consider that parts of
the proposal which are acceptable are physically clearly severable from that
part which is not. In this case, the modifications to the garage roof would be
attached to the pitched roof extension to the front dormer. Moreover, I do not
consider that such a split decision would be clearly and easily defined with
reference to the submitted drawings. Therefore, a split decision would not be
appropriate in this case.

Conclusion

15. The proposed roof extension to the existing front dormer conflicts with the
development plan, taken as a whole and there are no other material
considerations, which outweigh this finding. Therefore, for the reasons given,
the appeal is dismissed.

K A Taylor

INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1053



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 25th January 2022
	Minutes

	4 Planning Applications
	Item 01 and 02
	Item 03 updated
	Item 04

	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals

